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INTRODUCED MAY 11, 1978 

By Senators FELDMAN, SCARDINO, FRTEDL.AND, EWING, 

PERSKIE and DODD 

Referred to Committee on F.ducation 

AN AcT providiug for high !·whoo! graduation Rtnndards and sup­

plementing TitlP lHA of tlw New .l(•r::;ny 8tat11tcs. 

BE IT 1rnACTF.u by lhf' 8<·nalf' and (;eneral Ass1·111b1_11 of the State 

2 of Nno .Jersey: 

1. Hy ,July 1, *[1!>7!1]" 'l(ISO' tile> •[Stal!- Dl'parlntl'llt]"' "('om· 

2 ·missioner• of Edu<'ation '1cith lhl' a11111orol oj lh1· ,'-jfa/p; Uoard of 

i1 Edurntion" shnll establish a program of standards for graduation 

:3A from secondary school. Ruch a pro'!:ram shall include, but not be 

3n limited to: 

4 a. 'l1l1c dcvelop111Pnt ol' a Sl:d0wide assc~ssrnnnt lest in "'[com­

;) rnnnicatou]• ""rendi11ff, 111riti11,r(' and eornputatiom1] ski]]g to he 

(i a<lministered to nll sP<'OTHlary :whool pupils as provided lwrcin; 

7 h. Clear and <'xplirt Slalt•widP i.~vP]s of profici<•ncy in "'[corn­

s nnrnif'ation]' • rr11din,r1, 'll"rilin9• and c·omputational skills to be 

!I d0rno11strntrd as a rni1111111111 n·quir<'lll!'Tit for high school g-ra<l11a­

!JA tion; 

10 c. 011idrli11<'s for t111~ 1kv1•lop11Jl'n( of g-raduation staT1<lards hy 

11 local boards of Pcl11cation; 

12 d. Guidelines for remediation proe<'<lurcs for pupils who fail to 

13 meet graduation standards; and 

14 e. *[Special provisions]* *(/nidelines• for graduation standards 

lG for those pupils classified pursuant to chapter 46 of Title 18A of 

16 the New Jersey Statutes. 

l 2. By .Tuly 1, "'[1980]• * 1981", pursuant to guidelines 1•:.:;tablished 

2 by the •[State Department]* "'Comrni,ssioner• of Education, each 

3 board of education shall establish standards for graduation from 

EXPLANATION-Matter enclosed in bold-fal'ed brackets [thus] in the above bill 
ia not enacted and is intended to be omitted in the law. 
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1 itH s1•1'.<H1<lar:. "<·,lio<J)H. Said "f 1111dard -;hall hP Hfipropriate t0 l<H'.a] 

:1 l('JltlH a1J1l ol1j1!diveH and .~Ji;.JI irwlwh:, l1u1. rw.1:d rI'if. lw liwib:d to: 

Ii 11. Sati:~.f:wf.1iry pr·rf1Jrr11;u:"'' ,,,, 1111· S1a1•·11·;.J, :1 '''"rri1:nl 11·-,1 

7 ui; prcivide<l for in :-;ectiun 1 <11' 1.l:i:~ ad; 

t4 L. Demonstration of profi1:i1:J1<·i1:~; in tltos1· ,;uu.i<~et areas and 

9 skills identified by the board as Jte('t>ssary for gi ad1iation "t other 

9A than thosr •1s.cr·sscil h?t the Stnt c1rirfr '1.'·sc.~smrnf trsts""". 

10 ...,.[Each local board of edneatiu11 slwll submit t.o t.he]''" *[State 

11 Department]• 0 'J'he•• ,.,Curnmissioner• of Ji~<lucation °[for up 

12 proval by that departmcnt.]'x • »+shall ·munitor lo<'a1° plani; for ih1~ 

1 :~ assessment of proficiencies required for graduation including 

14 techniques and instrument:; t.o be ust>d to det(~rmine pupil pro-

15 ficiency•; required programs designed to provide the opportunity 

lGA for pupils to progress to1card the 11uistcry of proficiences required 

15n for graduation;• and remediation programs for pupili:; who fail to 

15c meet graduation proficiency standards .. i.n order to assure corn-

15D pliance with the requirement of thi8 act*•. 

16 The Commissioner of Education shall, upon request of the local 

17 board, provide such technical m;sistance as may be necessary to 

18 aid a district in the planning, implementation and evaluation of 

19 graduation standards. 

•[3. Based upon the standard and proficiencies prescribed 

2 herein and with the approval of the Commissioner of Education, 

3 each board of education shall provide for the awarding of differ-

4 entiatcd certificates and diplomas to correspond with the varying-

5 achievement levels or competencies of its secondary school pupils 

6 which shall at a minimum include: 

7 a. A certificate of compfotion for tliose students who do not med 

8 the State and local graduation standard:;, and who satisfactorily 

9 complete all other requirenwnt.s for graduation; 

10 b. A general diploma for tlios<~ pupil::-; who meet tl1e l:{tate and 

11 local graduation standards; uJHl 

12 c. An honors diploma for students whose performance in all 

13 areas of their high school curriculum is determined by the local 

14 board to be outstanding.]* 

1 "'3. For any stndent who does not meet the State and district 

2 examination standard..s for ,graduation by the end of tenth grade, 

3 the local board of education ,,,.when appropriate 0 shall provide 

3A additional remedial instruction specifically directed toward mas-

4 tery of those proficiencies identified as necessary for the awa.rdinq 

5 of a diploma which 1na.y include but need not be limited to an ex-

6 tended school year, extended school day, or additional school years. 



8 Any twdf th qrarlr; sturlwnt who rlor;s n0t mP,d said requirements 

!J hut who has met all the r:;·P,dit, curriculum and attendance require­

!"),\ 'Ynf'nfs sholl he diqifilr:: for r1 , n>n!Jrehensive r1sse 0 . rnent of snirl 

10 profir·iPncies idilizinr1 techniques rmd in.stnJmr'nts otlier fhlm 

11 standardized tests, u;/iich techniques and iwltrnmcnts shall ha1 e 

12 been approved by the Commissioner of Edur:ntion as fulfillin_q State 

13 and local ,qrnduation requiren!l"nfs. 

1 4. All students who meet Strde unrl iocal .rrrndurdion rcqulrf'-

2 ments shall 1·eceive a **[diplomn endorsed by the Commis:;ioner of 

3 Education]*"' '°State endorsed d·iplorna*"'; provided, howe11er, that 

4 the Commissioner of Education 8hall approre any Stnte endorsed 

5 diploma which utilizes the r:omprehnisire asses.c;ment fer:hniques ns 

6 provided in section 3 of this ad. 

7 Local districts may 0 not'0 11rovide a .. hiqh school~* diploma to 

8 students not meetin_q these standards ""[, prorid('(l that no sue/, 

9 local diploma may be awarded until the district Jws fuljillPd oil 

10 developmenta.l, programmatic and rem.edial procedurPs as required 

lOA herein.Ju *'" An:t1 out-of-school youth or adult aqe 18 or over who 

1011 has othern.:·ise met the d'isfrfrt .<Jradua.tion l'l'1111,irn1wnts h11t h11s 

10c failed to earn 11. State cnrlorsf~d di11lo111<1 1110.y t11/,,, ,, h11si1· s/.'iUs 11,sl 

lOo which has been d1~1~eloped m11l 11dmin-isfrred u:ndcr t/11· 1111s1Jil'es o/ 

10E the Commiss·ioner of /~'ducati.011. f!1wn µ11ssinr1 this lest, 11 Sfof1· 

101" endorsed diplotn{t will be qranff'd. "'* 

11 /•}ac;/1 borird of educatfon shall provide, iti a format approved /111 

12 the Commissioner of Education, a performance transcript for ea1:h 

13 student leaving secondary school.• 

1 •[4.]" ":i.• (T pon adoption h~' tlw local board of education, oa.ch 

~ hoard of education Hha11 providP Pach high ~·whool pupil and tl11~ 

;l pan•11tH or legal guardians of such pupil with a copy of said hoard's 

4 policy on graduation, includiIJg- a cll'ar stntmnent of the profi-

5 ciencieH required for grad11atio11 ""'[, the ('Prtifi<'atPs aud diploma-.: 

(i available,]*" and those programs availahle to ttKHi·s•t. in attaiiiing 

7 those lc\·els of proficiency. 

1 "[5.]" •(i." In the school year which begins in September 

2 •[1980]" "1981", and annually thereafter, tlw State graduation 

:\ proficiPncy test shall he administ0rcd to all ninth ~rade pupils and 

4 to all other hiµ;h school pupils who have previously faikd to 

5 demonstrate mastery of Stat<' graduation proficiency standards 

6 on said test. 'l'he mastery ol' proficiencies rcqnin~d to fulfill local 

7 graduation standards shall be dl'tcrmined as appropriafo under 

8 local board of education assessment plans. 

1 °7. The local chief school administrntors shall report annually tn 

2 their local boards of education and to the Commissi.oner of Educa-
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~ tion tlu: numlu'r of stud1::nts who r·m1111leted tlu· t11•rlfth grnde course 

4 requirements and it·ere denied r1 diplomn and th<' 1111111lier of 8fudetds 

5 who recp,ived 8tot1· f'ndorsed rliplo11rns; 

6 n. By sncce8sfuly com7Jlefi11.o fhe Sf11/1·widf' 11ss1 ss111011 tests 1111rl 

7 local requirements; 

~ h. Bv 11sinp the "011111re/11:11s11·e r1s.,1's.~111cnf /l'clmi111:cs 1111d 11u:. f-

!) ing local rc1111iu'1111'11is, 1111d tf't'l't' 11111 , .1u: sifi<'d p11rs11111d 1 o dMl)Jfor 

10 46' of 'I'itle 18.11 of the New .lersc,11 Statutes; and 

11 c. By using the comprehensive as..;essni.ent technique.", meeting 

12 local requirements, and were classified pursun.nt to chavter 4r; of 

13 Title 18A of the New .Jersey Statutes. 

14 This report to the commissioner shall he included as a portion of 

15 the district a·mi.11,al report required under section 11 of P. L. 1975, 

16 c:. 212 (C. 18A :7A-11). 

H. '/'he Commissioner of Rd11rnl io11 shall also rlevtloµ rnles and 

2 regnlahons for and m.ay iss111' h'/11/1· endorsed 1hplorna.~ to thos1: 

:3 students who ha1 1f success/111/,11 1·umpldl'd (' Slate a.111irooed a,dull 

4 high school prugnun. • 11 

•[f).]• .. [ 41 7. •1·0 0 .'J. 0 'J'l11• ( :011unissio11er of Ji~d1wat.ion Hl1u,IJ 

'.!, monitor Uw results of the implc11H·11tnt.iou of g-rndnat.ioll require­

;~ ment.s as provided herein, and shall from t.i111n to ti111e, b11t at least. 

4 once e\·ery 5 years i·eview and evaluate St.ate and 10t~a.l prog-ram:.;;, 

5 and shall report the results of said review and evaluation to the 

6 Governor and the Legislature together \\'ith sucJ1 rnoommPndations 

7 for changes as may be appropriate to achieve the purposes of this 

7A ad. 

1 41 [7.]• *"[*s!] 0 414110. ** 'l'he grndnatiou standards provi<l1~d 

2 for in thi15 aot shall not apply to pupils who 8hall I~ sch1~du1ed to 

3 graduate from secondary school pl"ior to the end of the *[198a-84]~ 

4 ·~ 1984-85~ school year. 

1 "'[8.]• *"[*9.*] 4141 u11.** 'l'hi::; act shall take effect immediately 

2 for the purposes of the planni11g anu developlllellt of g1 aduat io11 

3 standards; howc-ver, no boa rd of ed1wat.ion shall lw required to 

4 implement the program rPquired herein prior to the sd:ool year 

5 which begins in September •)[HISO]' '' 1.'J81". 
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ASSEMBLYMAN DANIEL F. NEWMAN (Chairman): I call the meeting to 

order. This is an Assembly Education Committee hearing on Senate Bill 1154. 

Seated to my left is the Committee Vice Chairman, Harold Martin, to my right is 

Assemblyman Walter Rand from Camden County. Other members of our Committee are 

either tied up at appropriations downstairs, or at other functions, so the Conunittf•e 

members will be changing. I just wanted everyone to know that. Tho re are .s0v1"rul 

members who serve both on the Apprcpriations Corrunittee as well as this Committee, 

so they are going to be alternating back and forth today. There will be at least 

two or three of us here at all times. 

The first witness is the sponsor of the bill, Senator Feldman from 

Bergen County. 

M A 'l' T H E W F E L D M A N: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I want to thank you 

and the Committee for giving me this opportunity to speak to you on the graduation 

standards bill, S-1154. 

I think we would all agree that our educational system today is facing 

a number of serious problems. I have never suggested that this bill offers a magic 

remedy for all of them. However, I do believe that in the critical area of pupil 

performance, S-1154 is an essential component of any effort at education reform. 

I have been asked many times why I sponsored this legislation. It 

originated with a conversation at a private party where a business acquaintance was 

complaining about the lack of preparation of high school graduates applying for 

jobs at his firm. Frankly, the more closely I examined the problem, the more 

appalling it appeared. 

It is evident that a significant number of students graduating from our 

high schools cannot read, write, or compute with any degree of proficiency. Even 

while we consider this legislation, the evidence mounts. We are all aware of the 

results of the basic skills testing program conducted at our public colleges which 

revealed that over one-third of our incoming freshmen lack minimal proficiencies 

in basic skills. 

The Chairman of the State Board of Higher Education called these results 

deplorable. And I am forced to agree, we cannot allow this to continue~. 

If I may suggest a suitable text for your discussion today and in the 

future of this bill, it would be, and I quote, "A student who receives a high school 

diploma should be expected to have attained a level of maturity, knowledge, and 

ability which enables him or her to function as a self-sufficient, productive adult. 

It seems appropriate, therefore, that students be required to demonstrate those qualities 

before receiving a diploma, and that educators be required to provide skills that 

they must demonstrate." 

This is the premise behind S-1154. And, I may add parenthetically, this 

quote is not from another State, or from a Newsweek article or other media 

publication, it is from the "Report of the New Jersey State Committee on High 

School Graduation Requirements," submitted on December 27, 1977. It is a report 

that all of us should review with some care. I must say, in all fairness, that this 

report does not recommend a State test for graduaU on. It doAs recommend local 

grddua.tion - and promotion - standards under State qui de lines - standards far men c~ 

comprehensive and rigorous than those before you in S-1154. 

This difference is, on my part, deliberate. I believe it is our 

constitutional obligation to provide some statewide performance standards. But 

1 



these must be minimums. 

First, I do not think that it is appropriate for the Legislature to 

dictate curriculum - nor is it our task to administer the system of education 

in New Jersey. We are not educators~ we are not trained in academic administration. 

In fact, this bill is before you only because those who are trained in these 

areas have failed to act. An administrative solution would be welcome. It would 

have been welcomed years ago. In its absence, the problem i,s so vital and immediate, 

legislative action is imperative. 

Secondly, State intervention in our local school :system should be restrained. 

The parents, the teachers, and the school board members are bE~st equipped to understand 

and to address the needs and aspirations of their own communities. In critical 

areas, statewide minimums are legitimate and, indeed, necessary. Interference beyond 

this minimal level would violate the very principles on which our system of public 

education is based. 

What, then, precisely, is provided for in S-1154. 

1. The Commissioner must establish a program of high school graduation standards. 

2. Included in this program is a statewide assessment test in reading, 

writing and computational skills to be first administered to 9th grade 

students in 1981. 

3. The Commissioner will set "clear and explicit statewide levels of 

proficiency in the basic skills." 

4. Local standards conforming to local goals and objectives must be set. 

5. Programs must be provided to help pupils reach state, and local proficiencies. 

6. Remedial programs must be provided for those who do not meet these 

proficiencies. 

7. Students who meet local and state proficiencies would receive a state 

endorsed local diploma. Those who do not could receive, may receive, 

a local diploma. 

8. Students who meet all requirements but fail the test could be given an 

alternative evaluation - which means a non-standard test. 

S-1154 represents a combination of State and local standards, early testing, 

and intensive remedial efforts. It is based upon our needs and our experience in 

New Jersey. I believe it is a strong program, without being ·Jnduly rigid. Perhaps 

this flexibility has raised several questions which I would like to address briefly. 

The first is the question of two levels of standards - local and State. 

I raise this because of the many times over the last months that people have asked 

me - "Do you mean you can pass the State test and not get a State diploma?" The 

answer is, "Yes, absolutely. 11 

Which is exactly the way it is today. Let me again refer you to the 

high school graduation requirements report. The Committee su:cveyed New Jersey 
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high schools concerning their requ.iremenis. 65% of Lht-.. hiqh .sclh)l)I:; l1':;pu11dt'd. J.('l 

me summarize the results: 

32.6% require no Science 

20.1% require no Math 

25% require more than two years of social studies 

6.5% now have proficiency requirements for grduation and some 

districts require art, music, community experience - or other subjects for 

graduation. In other words, two students can go to high school in two neighboring 

districts, take the same courses, get the same grades, and one may not get a 

diploma. 

w~-.. are not changing that. I would not presume to change that. A 

uniform statewide curriculum is inconsistent with the history and tradition of 

public education in New clersey. Under current law 1 local districts, with State 

Board of Education approval, develop programs consistent with local goals, needs 

and objectives. All S-1154 does is underpin that system by establishing a uniform 

minimum standard in basic skills. It does not replace local standards. It supplements 

them. 

I might add that if we were to define a high school education as the 

passing of a single test in basic skills, that would not be reform. It wo~ld be 

regression which I for one could never accept. 

I have tried to avoid reference to other states in this testimony. This 

bill is not a copy of another State's bill - it is designed to be consistent with our 

traditions. But it might be helpful to look across the river for a moment. New York 

has regents testing, and now basic skills testing. The Board of Regents sets 

minimums, including curriculum. And an individual can pass the basic skills and 

not get a diploma. In fact, he or she could pass the Regents exams with honors and 

not get a diploma - if local requirements are not met. We in New Jersey are not 

unique in our commitment to local control. 

There is one final issue I want to address, one which has created a good 

deal of controversy. That is the question of the local diploma. When I first 

introduced this bill, it provided that a student who did not meet graduation 

requirements would receive no diploma - just a certificate of completion. After 

review by the Senate Education Committee, this was changed to allow local districts 

to award diplomas without State endorsement. It was assumed that this would be the 

exception, not the rule. The purpose is to prevent an individual from being 

permanantly excluded from further education - to keep opportunity open to that child. 

Multiple diplomas should not seem so terrible. Again, looking 

across the river, you can receive a local diploma, a locally issued New York State 

diploma, a local diploma with a Regents endorsement, and a local diploma with a 

Regents endorsement with honors. And they are thinking of adding other kinds of 

diplomas. We are not New York, but compassion would seem to dictate that we keep 

this option. Or, it may be the judgement of this Committee that we return to the 

original concept. 

Whatever the decision, please remember that the important rhillq, thP 

critical thing, is not what we call the diploma, but what it means. We cannot 

continue to award meaningless diplomas. 

We cannot continue to delude ourselves and our children. They are not 

the ones who are failing~ we are failing them. I know that this Committee will 

give this bill a thorough and careful review. 
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I hope that, whatever the results of your deliberations, there is 

one thing on which we can all agree - we must provide for quality education, 

educational improvement and accountability. We must assure the young people of 

this State that the opportunities that a good education affcrds will be available 

to them. I believe S-1154 will help make that possible. Thank you very much 

for listening. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: The gentleman that has joined us at this point 

is James Saxton. Are there any questions of Senator Feldman? Assemblyman Rand. 

ASSEMBLYMAN RAND: Senator, if I understand your bill correctly, according 

to what you have outlined, we are going to have three diplomas, a diploma that meets 

local standards, all the requirements, including the State's, and a diploma that 

meets minimum standards set by the State, and a diploma of occupancy~ is that 

correct? 

SENATOR FELDMAN: No, no. There are two diplomas. One is a State 

approved diploma, providing that student meets local standards. If local standards 

are not met the student does not receive a State endorsed diploma. And then if 

the school district, in its own opinion and evaluation feels that that student is 

deserving of a local diploma, although the student failed to pass the minimum 

standards, that high school may, may, give a local diploma to that student, a local 

diploma that has no State endorsement. Originally, I had only one diploma which 

was state endorsed, and if you did not meet the standards of your local school 

districts, you would not receive the State approved diploma. I then had another 

certificate, a certificate of completion. So there are two, a certificate of 

completion, which is not a diploma, and the one diploma which was rigid, and that 

diploma had to be State approved providing it met local standards. 

ASSEMBLYMAN RAND: I have one more question. I ar1 going to return to 

my favorite subject. I know I can't ask you for a concrete figure, but what is 

the program going to cost the State for all the ninth grade testing and tenth grade 

testing and remedial programs? 

SENATOR FELDMAN: It would be difficult to determine the actual costs of 

S-1154, because there would be no impact until fiscal 1983, and we could only 

guess the number of pupils who will fail, how low or high thc:tt number will be, 

as to scores, and the type and intensity of remediation that will be required to 

bring these students up to level. However, a number of standards should moderate 

the costs. There are State and Federal funds available for remediation. We don't 

know if new monies will be necessary. The first class to be tested is now in the 

sixth grade. They will be given the minimum basic skills teE.t this year, and 

those who do poorly will receive remediation now. Therefore, they will have 

received three years of special basic skills instruction before they take the 

high school graduation test. 

Lastly, if, after this remediation, a significant number of students in 

any district fail, then we should face the fact that the problem is with the basic 

curriculum of our school system. We get Title One money, and that is a good question, 

but if it does, I can't see it because of these other factors. But, if it means the 

saving of a young person's future, that remediation must be given to him. There 

is nothing that has more priority, as far as I am concerned, than giving young 

people the tools to meet a life that can be kind or a life that can be cruel. 

Also, let's stop the hoax and the fraud of giving a diploma that is meaningless 

where the student feels this is my passport to life, when it may only mean a passport 
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into failure and a dismal career ahead of that young person. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Senator, under the bill, there would be two 

different types of diplomas, correct? 

SENATOR FELDMAN: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: How is the average person, who is unfamiliar 

with the program, going to make a determination as to whether the diploma is one 

or the other? 

SENATOR FELDMAN: Who are we talking a1Jout, the employer? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: We are talking about any individual looking at a 

diploma. 

SENATOR FELDMAN: There is a State seal. It is a State approved 

diploma. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Yes, and if the individual looking at the diploma 

isn't aware of the intent of the bill or of the rationale for the two diplomas, 

what is it going to mean, then, if he or she sees that diploma and doesn't see a 

State seal? 

SENATOR FELDMAN: Who are we talking about? Nobody carries their diploma 

around in their pocket for show and tell. When one fills out an employment form, 

if one cannot fill out an employment form, or cannot read an employment form to 

know how to fill out that questionnaire, then the employer or the agency knows that 

something is wrong, as they have told me in the beginning. This has all been 

triggered by a businessman in the State who employs and wants to gainfully employ 

hundreds of people. If they can't fill out an employment form, then he knows 

something is wrong. He doesn't have to ask. He could ask, and they might answer 

in the affirmative, and he would then reply as he did to me, "Something is rotten 

in the State of New Jersey when a high school graduate cannot read, write or 

compute with any degree of proficiency." 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: I am still at a loss. I understand the recipient 

of the diploma doesn't walk around with his diploma in his pocket, which I would 

grant you is probably the case. So, if he merely says to an employer, yes, I have 

a diploma, how is the individual employer to know the significance? 

SENATOR FELDMAN: Employment forms today say, "Are you a high school 

graduate, yes or no. 11 These forms can be changed. This is not a closed hearing. 

We are not meeting in a closet. If this bill passes, and there is a State endorsed 

diploma, on that application it will state, "Have you a State endorsed diploma?" 

Or, if you feel in your wisdom that you would like to amend the bill back to the 

original one diploma. Then there is just the need to ask if they have a high 

school diploma. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: In other words, you are willing to have this bill 

changed to one diploma? 

SENATOR FELDMAN: I made the amendment for the local districts to award 

if they want to. If they feel it is the responsible thing to do, they can have a 

local diploma. I have no strenuous objections to an amendment for one diploma, 

a rigid diploma. It would bring the bill back to its original concept. I changed 

it because I am flexible. I have listened to testimony of people who have come 

before us in the Senate, parents, and members of the minority communities in the 

State, and they questioned the stigma that would be attached to a young person. 

On the other hand, I addressed a Fairleigh Dickinson student body the 

other day, and the most "strident" - and I use the word in quotes - of those 
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students were for the one diploma, not for the two diplomas. They wanted that 

diploma to be even more meaningful. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: What about the argument that minimums become 

maximums? 

SENATOR FELDMAN: Again, it goes back to the local school districts. 

This is the important part. The beauty of the bill is that you just don't graduate 

with minimum standards. You have to meet these minimum standards, but you have 

to conform to the standards set forth by the local school dL3tricts. That is the 

beautiful part of the bill. You just can't get by with mininum standards. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: That is precisely what I am 9etting at. Isn't it 

conceivable, and perhaps even likely, that the local school districts in many 

instances would take the easy way out and set minimums that are really of no 

consequence. 

SENATOR FELDMAN: I don't think a local school di Eitrict would set 

minimums that have no consequences. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: In your testimony you pretty much indicated figures, 

if I may interrupt you for a moment, that were rather startling and shocking, and 

that many school distric~have lax requirements in terms of eubject matter, mathematics, 

history, English, whatever. Isn't that indicative of the kind of thing that would 

probably occur if you had minimum standards? 

SENATOR FELDMAN: It is more than school districts setting low standards. 

I think many of them do not. People are graduating and just easing through. Maybe 

the accountability isn't what it should be. I don't mean accountability only of the 

educators, but also of the parents, and students. 

blame at any segment of the educational community. 

I am not pointing a finger of 

All of us have to share the 

responsibility. When I say "all" I mean parents, students, educators, administrators, 

legislators. We all have to really share this responsibility. 

You know, we can lament and try to find loopholes in any piece of 

legislation, but something has to be done. We know we have a cancer that could 

become more terminal every year. The SAT scores are declinin9. One-third of 

incoming college freshmen cannot really pass a basic skills college freshman test. 

Now, are we living in a fantasy world, in a Walter Mitty world? Do 

people feel that watching a TV tube or watching a calculator is going to bring 

them into this world. Nothing has been done up to now. I say we have to stop 

our lamentations. We all talk about it with our families and our friends, but 

nobody wants to do anything about it in New Jersey. Some things 

should be done by regulation. We only do things because the Bystem didn't do it. 

This should have been done years ago. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Is there any evidence in other states? You mentioned 

New York where they have the Regents tests. Is there any indication there or elsewhere 

that the SAT scores, or test scores,have improved substantially as a result of the 

minimum standards? 

SENATOR FELDMAN: Yes. There has been an improvement, even in the State 

of Florida. I was against the Florida bill. The Florida testing is done in the 

eleventh grade. They hit them with the test, and then they have their remediation, 

and they take it again in the twelfth grade, and they graduate them. Florida has 

modified its bill, and more students have passed now, the second time around, than 

passed the first time around, so there is an improvement in the State of Florida. 

There is improvement in Colorado. New Jersey is America in microcasm. This is 
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not peculiar to our State. But some states have already started to move in this 

direction of remediation and help and New Jersey has not. There has been improvement, 

yes. To me, the percentage in Florida h.as been significant. This just came in 

the other day. But, like the old biblical story of Sodom and Gomorrah, if you 

remember your biblical history, Abraham was debating with God about destroying 

that city, and he said there are righteous people, if there are ten or five or 

fifty, don't destroy it. That was the dialogue that was going on, and whr~ther we 

look upon it as dilegory, or legend, or Cact, it is a qreat lesson. 

If this bill can save the careers, and literally the lives of high 

school students, whether there are one hundred or two hundred or fifty the first 

year, I don't care. We are doing our job as legislators. Eventually, I know 

there is qoing to be a ripple effect. I don't even know how many students will 

fail when this test is given the first time around. We have basic skills now. 

We will be getting T & E. This is a continuation of our T & E program. Let's 

see what happens with the first results before we give accolades or condemnations. 

Let's see what happens. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SAXTON: Senator, on page two, your paragraph three 

spells out that for any student who does not meet the State or district 

examination standards for graduation in tenth grade, the local board of education 

shall provide additional remedial instruction, which may include an extended 

school year, extended school day, or additional school years. Now, that seems 

obvious that that is going to cost someone some money. As Assemblyman Rand 

pointed out, do we have any idea what that would be, number one, and, number two, 

how would we handle that within the structure of the CAPS? 

SENATOR FELDMAN: Well, I personally believe that there should be some 

modification to the CAP program, which is not relevant to this discussion this 

morning. I have another bill, and if Saint Jude is kind to me and that bill passes 

the Senate, then I will be in here on this modification bill. But, I am not that 

optimistic. 

However, what we are putting in there is that the remediation has to 

be intensified in the tenth grade. Then, we know, hey, we> have a danqer sign. If 

they fail in the ninth grade and if they fail in the tenth grade, we have to intensify 

which can be after school hours, additional school days. We have to remedy the 

situation by intensifying the basic skills or minimum standards. The cost, as 

I told Assemblyman Rand, I don't know. I don't know a thing about it. I recited 

reasons why I don't think the cost will be too excessive, or whether there will 

be any cost at all, because we are giving basic skills testing in the ninth and 

eleventh grade. We may do away with the eleventh grade basic skills testing, or 

use that for remediation. The money is already there. The money has been allocated 

for the nineth grade, so we are doing it now. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SAXTON: If we accept the premise that there will be additional 

costs, then doesn't it follow that we would have to do something in terms of 

modifying CAPS in order to accommodate those new proqrams? 

SENATOR FELDMAN: I believe with Title One monies, and federal moni0s, 

and compensatory education monies, we can ride this out. And, if it does mean 

spending additional monies to give a young person a chance at life, I would be 

for it. I would say we in the Legislature can cut out a lot of other programs 

and give this priority. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SAX.TON: I have one other question. It is generally felt, 

and I think it can be held that it is pretty much fact, that there are some school 
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districts who tend to graduate high school seniors with rather high credentials, 

as opposed to other school districts who presently graduate high school seniors 

with rather low credentials. Can you see this bill in any way creating a two-tier 

system of education in terms of possibly the identification which might be gained 

by certain school districts who tend to graduate a large number of students with 

a local district rather than a State endorsed district? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FELDMAN: I would say that the vast majority of high school 

graduates, if this bill is implemented into law, would rece.i.ve a State approved 

diploma. You know, in the hearing that we had in the Senat<~, I never like to 

generalize, but something came out which maybe bears repeating this morning, one 

of the witnesses stated that at a high school graduation c~~remony where the 

graduates were bedecked in all the best of academia, cap and gown, diplomas given 

out, a handshake was given, one of the young persons that n~ceived the diploma could 

not read it. That person's younger sister of nine years old read that diploma to her 

graduating brother. Now, to me this is a hoax and a fraud. I think this is the 

important thing. At least we know, I want that diploma~ whether it be from my 

town of Teaneck, or Newark or Ridgewood, or whatever the town, 'Toms River, 

Camden, whatever - to mean that that young person can read, write and compute 

with some proficiency, whether that school district is in my town or is in Assemblyman 

Rand's town or in your community. 

ASSEMBLYMAN RAND: Senator, I a~ beginning to like your bill more and 

more, and there are some reasons why I like it. Maybe I will feed you some input 

as to where we can get some money. I like the fact that you designate those people 

who have not even reached the ability to use computational skills, even though 

they are getting a diploma. I would hope that through the i:nplernentation of this, 

that certainly our higher schools of education will continually complain that they 

have to review and place these children in a remedial readin9 class, when they 

reach the first year of higher education, and by the time that this bill begins to 

take effect, maybe we will have designated, those students who received this diploma 

that they certainly have met the minimum standards, and they certainly can compete 

with all other students. And, those who have not, at least you have not shut the 

door on them. by giving them a diploma without a State seal, and they can be given 

remedial work and can at least go on to further education. ~>o, maybe these higher 

schools of education who continually come before us and say that we are not giving 

them enough money for remedial programs for freshmen in the ~1chools, maybe the time 

will come when we don't have to give them these amounts of money. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: I have one brief question. Do you see, under this 

bill, the possibility that the local standards .will exceed the State standards, 

and if that is so, in that community, at least, would the State diploma not be 

as important as the local diploma? 

SENATOR FELDMAN: No. The State is the minimum. The local, always, 

generally speaking, will have to exceed the State. You cannot get the State seal 

unless you pass the local school district requirements. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: You keep speaking to a State seal. That is 

administrative, anyway. It could be red, white and blue, or whatever. 

SENATOR FELDMAN: Yes. I did not emphasize that t~'.lere are students 

that freeze when they take a test. They know their work. I mean, we know people 

perhaps in our own families who really are fine students, but when it comes to 

taking a test, somehow, whether it is SAT's,or whatever it ii3, they will freeze. 
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Well, if the teacher so desires, and feels that young p0rson has it but somehow 

the stress and the tension knowing that it is minimum standards, and all of a 

sudden the mind goes blank, that young person can take a non-standardized test, 

if the educator believes that that person is eligibl0. But, the non-standardized 

test must have the approval of the Department of Education. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Thank you very much, Senator. 

now call the Conunissioner of Education, Dr. Burke. 

I am going to 

F R E D G. B U R K E: Thank you. I brought Mr. Mathis and Mr. Mills 

with me in case you have some questions which are beyond my limited ninth grade 

competencies. 

Mr. Chairman, over six months ago, I presented my views on statewide 

proficiency requirements for high school graduation to the Senate Committee on 

Education. At that time, I indicated my strong support for the enactment of this 

legislation because I felt that it would increase the motivation of students and 

teachers, and would help restore public confidence in our schools - something which 

I think is vitally necessary. I still believe that this is true and therefore I 

have come h0re today to urge you to act positively on this bill. 

In my testimony before the Senate, I recommended a number of improvements 

to the bill that were primarily related to the provision of student transcripts and 

remediation, and I am very pleased that most of these changes have since been made, 

and have been incorporated in the version of the bill that you have. However, the 

bill that you have before you still permits two types of diplomas, and I was here 

on time to hear you discussing this. One diploma is endorsed by the State when all 

requirements, including the proficiency standards, are met and one provided by a 

local district when all requirements except the proficiency standards are met. 

I continue to feel that there ought to be a single diploma and that we should not 

attempt to delude students and the public by offering them a second best diploma, 

or whatever one wants to call it. 

The provision for alternative assessment procedures, and alternative 

testing procedures, if you wish, I think, offers specific protection for that 

exceptional youngster who simply can't tolerate, for some r~asons, pressure of a 

test or where a student is above average in every respect, save one, and cannot 

pass the test after repeated attempts. We have built in, in our proposal, an 

alternative assessment procedure which could handle that rare, exceptional case. 

These alternative procedures, though, have to be very carefully designed and 

monitored, lest they also become a device for avoiding the implications of the 

standards. It is for this reason that I recommend that f'ach district n~port 

publicly and to the Commissioner the number of stud0nts granted diplomas usinq 

alternate procedures. 

Remember that we are talking about minimums, about basic skills that 

are essential to employment, to maintaining a household, to raising a family. Every 

student, except some who are classified, can with proper instruction and with parental 

support meet such standards. It is not our object to deny students, but to motivate 

them to acquire skills essential to life. 

It might be argued that the bill places a burden on students and not 

on the professionals who serve those students. This is unlikely to be the case. 

Local boards of education, parents, and taxpayers will be interested in the results 

of such tests, and will demand improvement in the educational program if the results 

are inadequate. I am firmly convinced that one of the most powerful weapons we have 
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in attempting to improve the quality of education is openinq the educational 

process up so that the results are available to parents and to the public, with 

them in turn bringing in their views and concerns. Any possible burden on 

students is relieved by the early administration of the test in the ninth grade, 

and by the required provision of remediation, which are inc~Luded in the legislation. 

The Department of Education will be interested in these results as it implements 

the evaluation procedures required by Public Law 212 - obviously, the relationship 

between minimal standards testing which begins in the third grade for us and 

continues up through the ninth. 

Remediation will be required, but the existing st.ate funds for compensatory 

education should serve this purpose. We are now in the process of conducting a total 

review of our compensatory programs in order to more sha::::ply focus our efforts. 

Indeed, these proposed graduation requirements should lead to improvements in our 

remedial programs due to better student motivation and to student and parental 

pressure on the schools. 

I am aware that there will be difficulties: Standards will not be 

easy to determine. Test security may become a problem and could increase the 

costs of our assessment program. Submission of local plans and procedures for 

graduation standards may lead to more paperwork. The initial impact of these 

standards will fall most heavily on our urban schools. Nevertheless, I am convinced 

that in the long ru~, students will benefit from this measur1? and that the schools 

will benefit. I also feel that our existing program of adult high schools, which 

would be able to grant state endorsed diplomas, coupled with the opportunity for 

out-of-school students to come back and take the tests, will help prevent 

individuals from paying an unreasonable price as a consequence of our efforts 

to improve public education. We have closely studied the problems and the 

promises of similar programs in other states and cities. ThE~ program represented 

in this bill and these recorrunended changes should result in j_ncreased performance 

while protecting the rights of children. 

I also ask that the section calling for special guidelines for classified 

students be deleted in order to conform with federal guidelines. In these cases, 

the student will be given a comprehensive assessment based on the individual 

educational plan which is required of those students. This plan would indicate 

whether the State tests are indeed appropriate for that clasE:ified youngster. And, 

by doing this, it would be consistent with the federal guidelines. 

I will provide to you suggested wording for the changes that I have 

commented on briefly, as well as some other minor technical changes we think would 

be useful. We have costed this bill on the assunption that we would utilize existing 

State compensatory,Title One, and local funds to meet the remediation needs of the 

children who failed to pass the tests on the first opportunity. We anticipate that the 

State costs for development of program guidelines and program administration will 

increase up to a figure of $687,000 annually by Fiscal Year '85 when the program 

reaches full effect. 

We have also costed the bill on the basis of the current language 

in the bill calling for additional remediation which might include the provision 

of extended school days, an extended school year, and/or additional years of schooling. 

Though it is difficult to estimate these costs, we project that the figure 

could reach as high as $10,500,000 annually by fiscal year 'i35. 
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I think, however, that with the changes we have recommended and 

judicious use of existing State compensatory funds, coupled with federal and 

local funds, we can implement the bill at the $687,000, Fiscal Year 1 85, level 

I mentioned before. 

I must point out, however, that the $6[)7, 000 figure reflects real locations 

within allocations within local scho61 districts. The cost of additional remediation 

will vary as a function of local ability to economize within existing resources, the 

effectiveness of the district in conducting successful remediation programs, and 

their latitude within district budget categories. Some of these additional costs 

may be reflected back to the State in the form of increased equalization aid. 

I do not think, however, that these costs will approach the $10,500,000 figur0 -

if one assumed an addiitional state input of that much compensatory dollars for 

the number of children that would be identified as not passing these tests requiring 

remediation in the language of this legislation as it now exists. 

Districts can comply with this legislation by reorganizing their existing 

programs. In addition, we are tightening our monitoring and evaluation programs in 

compensatory education and these expenses can also be constrained by our budget 

review process. 

I recommend that you release this bill with the improvements that I 

have noted. I am now available to discuss aspects of the bill with you. I am 

prepared, with my staff, to answer any questions that you or your colleagues may 

have. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Thank you, Commissioner. It is my understanding 

jn the fjrst consideration of this bill, you would use the minimum basic skilJ.s 

test now~ is that so? 

COMMISSIONER BURKE: That is correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: I don't know if the ultimate goal of the Department 

as the bill calls for your approval of the guidelines along with the State Board 

of Education, whether they would be increased to any degree. Would you care to 

comment on that at this time? Would they ever get tougher than the minimum 

basic skills tests are currently? 

COMMISSIONER BURKE: Well, at the ninth grade level? 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER BURKE: I think that is conceivable. I think that built 

into the Stat0 Board regulations, and I think built into the r0gulations her0, 

would be, if nol annual, bi-annual revic'w. Th0 whole lanquaq0 oi li t.c~.t acy, or 

L unct ional literacy, or minimum skills, is a point of vi0w, as you know. If w~' 

can demonstrate through our programs that we are raising the level of the basic 

skills in our schools, then I see no reason why we shouldn't constantly try to 

raise our sights as well. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: I raise that question, so you will know where I am 

corning from. We are going to hear from Chancellor Hollander later. It is my 

understanding that the test used by the Department of Higher Ed. for admission to 

college - and you heard the sponsor indicate the results of those tests, and 

you know the publicity the education in New Jersey received when those tests 

were administered last year, and we will get another barrage of it next 

September, I am sure - is geared to an eleventh grade level. My concern is, 

then, if this bill is geared to the tenth grade level or ninth grade level, that 

testing means we have not dealt with that problem, that is, the ability to go into 
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a college entrance exam, or whatever test they use, and take that test. Are we 

not going to have the same kind of results in spite of this bill, at least in that 

one area of discussion? 

COMMISSIONER BURKE: High school was never designed to prepare everybody 

to go to college. It was designed to prepare people to function as an employee, 

as a father or mother in a family, to function as a good citizen, and it is only 

recently, of course, that we have opened the doors to our colleges and universities 

to literally anybody who wants to go there. 

I am not pretending at all that a youngster who s3.tisf ies whatever the 

standards the State Board comes up with - and we are now thi:1.king in terms of the 

ninth grade reading, computation and writing - ought to be a prime candidate for 

our colleges and universities. I do think that the question of what we do in 

testing in and around the eleventh grade has to be coordinat1~d very closely with 

the colleges and universities. The Chancellor and I have talked about this. We 

have, for example, an eleventh grade test, which, in our calculations, is only 

slightly easier than the test which was administered to the in-going college students 

in New Jersey schools. 

We have set up with the Chancellor a basic skills combined group to try 

to work on that articulation, and coordination of what happens to the youngsters. 

We also think it is conceivable that a test at the ninth grade level can be used 

to demonstrate excellence and possibly could be tied in, in the long run, with 

the higher education provision of support for youngsters going to our public schools. 

I worry sometimes about our concentration on the minimum, ba~.ic survival. The function 

of education should be more noble than concerning ourselves solely with what basically, 

minimally it takes to survive. That is not the good life or the life that we 

envision for our young people. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: We now have the minimum basic skills tests in place, 

and we are testing in the third, sixth, ninth and eleventh grade levels, which is 

statewide. And we are testing locally in the off years, as I understand it, and 

correct me if I am wrong. 

COMMISSIONER BURKE: That's right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: For the purposes of qualifying youngsters for 

compensatory education. I want to relate that to this. If we test now in the 

ninth grade - and these figures have been requested by this Committee - do we see 

any decrease in the numbers of students in the programs? In other words, it seems 

to me if education working, when we wind up with youngster:s in the ninth grade 

who fail the basic skills test, and then we test them again in the tenth grade, or 

the eleventh grade, do we see any significant numbers in drop:3 which would indicate 

to me as a layman that remediation is working. 

And now I relate that to this bill. If that is not so, the student 

drop off is not there, if that is not so, and I mean by names, as well as numbers, 

what guarantee do we have that remediation would work just because we have a bill 

that s~ys it is going to work? 

COMMISSIONER BURKE: That is the critical question. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: That is why I asked it. 

COMMISSIONER BURKE: We have some preliminary evidE~nce that is very 

encouraging to us. I think by June or July we should be able to--- It is quite 

satisfactory to us, but we don't feel it warrants yet laying it out to you. But, 

~ are making some progress on this. Some of the more recent research and literature 
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suggests that you can rernediate if there is propc'r ni,._""1ti,·:-1tion qivL'n tn t·ht' ,,i, 11ith, ninth, 

and eleventh grade levels, whereas many researchers ust":'d to think you c1.)u Id d,' t li 1 :~ 

in third grade and fifth gra(ie. Motiviation tends to be a factor here. W1:-' .t ,,,,] 

that if it is quite clear that satisfactory performance on the three basic skills 

is going to be required in order to get a high school diploma, we think that would 

increase the motivation of the parents, and of the teachers as well. 

Now, in terms of cost of remediation, if it works, in a sense, our 

drop-out rate should fall off. There are other factors which might make it increase, 

because people will say, I am never going to cut this exam, anyway. But, if we 

assume the motivation is there, then we may have larger numbers, because more 

youngsters are staying in school, but we should be able to demonstrate that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: That is why we need names, and not numbers. I 

agree with you completely. We don't want to get tied up in the numbers game. That 

is why--- When you send out and say, how many youngsters are in this program, 

I think you need more than just numbers. I think you need to know who it is you 

are :3peaking about, particularly, until they either sink or swim. 

On0 other question, the bill deals with students and the results of 

their proficiency, and it deals with nothing else. It doesn't penalize the pare11ts, 

and it doesn't penalize you as the Conunissioner, and it doesn't penalize us as 

legislators, but most important of all, in my judgement, it doesn't penalize the 

educators at all, or the school board members at all. It just deals with students, 

and that is the part of the bill, quite frankly, that troubles my heart, that 

everyone else who has failed along this, to whatever degree they have failed, are 

excused, and only the student has to take the test, much like the old student progress 

argument. 

My question is, in your evaluation coming forth of every school district 

and report cards, for want of a better word, that you are going to give the school 

districts, would you be taking into consideration in the granting of that report 

card the percentages of youngsters that would fall under the guidance or the purview 

of this program? And, at what point would you think a cut-off point would make a 

school district ineligible? For instance, would it be 10% of your ninth grade 

class, or twelfth grade class, or whatever, 15%, 25%, and what are your options 

under present legislation now to highlight that problem and deal with that problem 

and you would, of course, not be dealing with the students, but the Board and the 

staff? 

COMMISSIONER BURKE: Assemblyman, you are posing the questions that 

are cutting edge, and about six months down the pike. We will be classifying all 

school districts in 1980 as approved, unapproved, or approved with condition. One 

of the elements which will determine whether a school is unapproved or approved is 

how well it does on the minimum standards testing. Now as of this point in time, 

we have not written into it the high school graduation aspect of minimal competencies, 

but it is an integral part of the same thing. 

When a school is classified as unapproved, then a basic skills improvement 

plan will have to be initiated, and the Commissioner and the State Board will demand 

such a plan, and will have to approve it. If it is not approved, they will, in the 

last analysis,have to prepare it. And the State Board, at the Corrunissioner 1 s 

recommendation under T & E, the last paragraph of •r & E, which is the bottom line, 

says, "Can, if necessary, do what is necessary to set the budget in order to provide 

that that plan takes place." I think there is plenty of authority there. The T & E 
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process is now doing what it was supposed to do. It is identifying those districts 

which are weak, weak in a variety of ways. And we arE~ in the process of 

completing now a school improvement capability within the DE~partment. 

In short, what we are saying is, much of the work in the Department 

for the past three years has been putting T & E in place, putting a structure in 

place, building a structure and so on. We have done that. There are some areas 

Which can use some improvement, and the State Board will con-.e to you with some 

suggestions on that when they come forward with their fifth year report. We now 

see that once the system is working, the areas of weakness are identified, and 

now the responsibility is to develop a school improvement thrust. That is, what 

do you do when you find them. I think the authority is there, and certainly nobody 

has any magic once you find out that you have a sick school, or a sick school system. 

We think we can make improvements. We think we are gbeginning to make some improvement. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: So, this would just be anoth,2r factor in establishing 

the five-year report. 

COMMISSIONER BURKE: That's right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SAXTON: I would like to follow up something that you brought 

up, Mr. Chairman, and something that the Commissioner has touched on a couple of 

times. One of the most important factors in educating children is to somehow get 

them motivated to want to do it, motivate them to want to read or whatever it is 

you are trying to teach them. I think several times you mentioned that motivational 

factor. At one point you said, if we assume that we are crE~ating an additional 

motivational factor here, then it should do something to help upgrade the level 

of education that we can expect as a result of our efforts. 

I think my question is, can we make that assumption? Is there evidence 

to back up the assumption that we are in fact with this bill providing some type 

of a motivational tool? And, on the other side of the coin, is there any evidence 

to suggest that maybe this would act in the other way in many, many instances, 

as for example with a young ninth grader who takes the test for the first time 

and fails it and he goes home, and h;j..s Mom says, "Gee, Johnny, you didn't do very 

well on your exam. You have to do better." And he takes· it again in ninth grade, 

and he goes home again, and his Mom says again, "Gee, Johnny, you didn't do very 

well. You have to do better." At what point does that kid become frustrated and 

say, the heck with it. I can't do it. Is that a danger that we are facing? 

COMMISSIONER BURKE: I think it is. If we take any aspect of education 

isolation, those types of analyses can be brought forward. In fact, there is a 

dange~ pushing your thoughts further, of the child dropping out simply because--­

Let 's face it, a school system which is concerned about its n~cord and how many 

of its youngsters pass the graduation requirements might not be as eager to keep 

that youngster in school. He adds a statistic on the wrong s:_de of the ledger, so 

to speak. Those are things we are going to have to work with and monitor very 

carefully. 

If, on the other hand, youngsters believe that their high school diploma 

they have in their hands is taken seriously, and will be taken seriously in terms of 

further education, whether it be technical or higher, and it will be taken seriously 

by employers --- One of the constant things we hear is that employers are not 

terribly impressed by a high school diploma, because to them it is a rather meaningless 

piece of paper. It doesn't mean that the youngster can compute enough to work in 

a lumber mill, or he can read well enough to read an invoice to do certain kinds of work. 
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If it becomes evident that the acquisition of this diploma does infer 

those skills and the youngster knows it and the parent knows it --- Take the same 

parent, the parent will say, "What difference does it make if the diploma is 

a meaningless thing anyway." So, I think it can have a positive impact. But I 

think that generally some of the other thrusts of the Department and the State 

Board are on, that is, improving the degree and the amount of parental involvement 

in the schools, getting more parents to concern themselves with the building level, 

and getting themselves involved in it. We are learning more about the whole q11estion 

of motivation, including motivation of students by teachers. 

All these things are going to have to be worked together. 11hen~ arr~· 

no promises of miracles, but some of the kinds of things that are beginning to 

occur and this thrust towards community education, re-involving the community in 

the schools--- We are doing this in New Brunswick now, for example, and elsewhere. 

With this type of motivation, and the tightening of standards, that should 

hopefully increase the public's respect for education, which in itself is a 

problem. In my view, there is a relationship between the willingness of the 

r:::ublic to support education financially, and their assessment of education. If we 

can improve the quality of education demonstrably, so people can sense that, I 

think public education will be on a stronger footing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN RAND: Commissioner, I liked some of the comments that you 

made before about the noble aspirations of education certain to go higher, and 

so forth. But, I am concerned about one thing you said about which I am most 

apprehensive and very disturbed - alternate procedures. It appears to me 

that we are dealing with minimums, not medians, not maximums. And I see something 

before me, which must destroy those minimums immediately. You give the local 

school boards an alternate procedure which they can waive, and all I can see 

is the word "waive. 11 I appreciate the mesmerization of taking examinations and 

freezing and so forth, but we are only talking about minimums. Before I would 

vote to release the bill, I would have to be so assured in my mind about these 

alternate procedures, which I am certainly not now, thqt to waive minimum standards 

and I say minimum and emphasize it - in any way, I think Senator Feldman will be 

back here a year later after his bill is passed, and after it is implemented, I 

believe he will be back h:>re a year later saying the same thing all over again. 

Would you care to comment on that? 

COMMISSIONER BURKE: That is an element that we agonized over ourselves. 

Philosc'phically, when we are looking at this whole question, we are trying to find 

a way to improve the quality of education and to set standards for kids graduating 

f:rom high school, all of them. And we are trying to use an instrumental procedure 

for all of our youngsters, but the problem is there are exceptional youngsters. 

There are some youngsters who are bright and intelligent, for some particular reason. 

God made us all a little bit different. They have a difficulty, and if you are 

an educator, or if you are human in any sense of the term, in doing this, in 

preparing this legislation, somehow you have to find a way that you simply don't 

ignore those individual youngsters, because you are affecting their very lives. 

For example, if there is a youngster who can pass the reading, and 

can pass the math test, but has some problems with the new writing test, almost 

passes it, and we find out that it has something to do with the possibility of 

hand control or something of that sort. That youngster's,it seems to me, life 

would be terribly affected if we just categorically said, you will always be 
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classified as a person who doesn't hold a high school diploma. So, we have tried 

to come up with what we think can be controlled, alternative means. The reason 

that we put in there that these have to be reported publicly by name who they 

are, not only to the public in public session, but to me, will give us some controls. 

I don't know whether Bill would like to add to that or not. 

W I LL I AM MATH I S: I have just recently reviewed New York's provisions 

and regulations for alternative assessment procedures which :Ls in their proposed 

rules and regulations, and they are tight. They do not allow the safety valve, 

the necessary safety valve to become a flood gate. Primari1y, we would be dealing 

with children who are retarded, emotionally disturbed, and handicapped. In 

addition to the reporting to the public, the Commissioner is recommending that the 

present paragraph four of the bill states that "Any time one of these State endorsed 

diplomas is granted using these comprehensive assessment techniques, the ultimate 

procedures, each individual case must be approved by the Commissioner." 

ASSEMBLYMAN RAND: I thank you for your answer. I still have a lot to 

go over. 

COMMISSIONER BURKE: I can understand that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN RAND: That is the section that disturbs me very, very much. 

Not the retarded children, but I am talking about--- It appe!ars to me that it opens 

up a flood gate of a lot of problems that we are going to have. 

I have one more question, Mr. Chairman. Commissioner, I do appreciate 

the testing, but I don't appreciate over-testing. I would hope in the development 

of these computational skills on testing we would attempt to start to replace, 

rather than put in additional testing methods. I think you can over-test kids, just 

as well as you can under-test. 

COMMISSIONER BURKE: I also think so. One of the reasons we would propose 

utilizing existing minimum basic skills testswas so that we didn't add another 

test. There was some discussion at one point that we might need a test just 

for high school graduation requirements. Now, what I propose to you is that 

existing testing mechanism that we now have. 

We have all looked to the future when the state of the art would be 

such that a set number of local tests, for example, could be so linked together 

that you could use one or the other and computerize them, so to speak. That is 

a goal that we still have. 

ASSEMBLYMAN RAND: Thank you very much, Commissioner. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Mr. Martin. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Commissioner, I don't know whether you were here 

before when the sponsor of this bill was testifying, but I asked him a question, 

and I would like to ask it of you too. What experience elsewhere with respect to 

this approach has this produced in the way of evidence to substantiate the need 

for following this approach to minimum standards? 

COMMISSIONER BURKE: The only state which has gone into this in the 

degree which we would do it is Florida. There have been some cities, Denver, 

for example, and others. The cities are smaller scale units of that, and have 

had some pretty good results. It is a smaller unit, a more homogenous population 

and so on. 

We have studied the Florida experience very well, and think that we can 

learn from it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: How long has that been in operation? 
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COMMISSIONER BURKE: 'l'his i .s the' thj rd yc)<lr. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Could any of the results there b<' at t1ihut.~tbl1' I<' 

the influx of northern students and th0ir population, student population, stud0nts 

who perhaps are a cut above average? 

MR. MATHIS: I don't think so. Florida is a rather impoverished state, 

regardless of the image that we have of it. They have a large number of minority 

students and so forth. They are showing good positive results as a result of their 

minimum standards graduation requirements program. We have learned not only how 

the thing can work, but we have learned that we should not put a test in the eleventh 

grade, which is what they did. And, as a consequence, there is not an adequate 

amount of time for remediation. We have also learned a lot about the intensity 

of the remediation that is necessary to start us off with some of these problc~ms. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Is it also P('rhapt3 a. possibility and e>ven perhaps 

a probability Lhu.t the conclusion that. has b<-:-P.n drawn from the ~tatistic.9 might 

Vt"ry w~-:-ll bo attributable to starting a lower baS!.O'. lt is obvious that if you 

increase $100,000 by $1,000 that represents a 1% increase. I should put it tho 

other way - if you had $10,000 and you had a 10% increase, and if you had $1 million, 

and added $100,000, it would be 1%. 

COMMISSIONER BURKE: The data that we are beginning to get togethe~ 

as I indicated before, really isn't shaped yet Q I raised that same question. Were 

we really showing significant gains only at the bottom of the pile, so to speak, 

which would in a sense be the same thing that you are talking about, and we transposed 

it to Florida. That has not been the case. Actually, the remediation bills, and 

stuff I look at~-Improvementsare made almost across the board. There is very little 

difference in the degree of improvement at the upper levels. 

MR. MATHIS: It has been across the board. We have had a historical 

grade success in the early grades, and the middle grades are just beginning to 

show some changes. We are still in a very preliminary state in terms of our data 

analysis. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: There are a couple more questions I would like to 

ask. I think you indicated in your remarks that you have very broad powers under 

Chapter 212, and I think that perhaps I have heard it said that under Title 18A, 

as well, you have very broad powers. Are they broad enough to do what is suggested 

in this bill without the bill, without S-1154. 

In other words, what I am saying is, can you do what S-1154 wants to do 

without S-1154? 

COMMISSIONER BURKE: I would have to study that more carefully. The 

State Board, through rules and regulations, does have enormous power in education. 

I don't think that as Commissioner I would have the power individually to do this, 

but whether the State Board would have it under rules and regulations is something 

I would have to ask an attorney to look at. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: The reason I ask you that is, it has been said 

many times in our committee meetings that the Department frowns on being mandated 

by the Legislature. Certainly in our contacts as legislators in the field of 

education on the local level, they resent mandates. Here we are mandating again, 

and my basic question is, if what I premised before with respect to the powers of 

your office, and the office of the Commissioners on the State Board, whether it is 

really necessary for this Legislature to tell the Education Department and the 

State Board of Education that they must do this. 
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COMMISSIONER BURKE: I think educational policy is shared. It is 

shared with the administration that helps formulate it, and it is shared with 

the Legislature which promulgates it, and it is shared with the State Board which 

has some policy authority, and rules and regulations authority, and I think that 

there is no sort of equal qway in which you divide up which authority falls into 

which category. But, I would think that with something of the magnitude of the 

high school graduation requirements or minimum basic skills, these are major 

fundamental policies which affect not only education, but they affect the 

economy and they have fiscal implications. They are of a major proportion. I 

find no difficulty with the representatives of the people who are elected by the 

people taking a hand in this area. 

I think that the State Board's view, and mine too, by the way, is that 

in areas of curriculum, or in areas of relatively less of a scale of educational 

significance,these are areas where the State Board does have the authority and must 

apply more time and thought to this area. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: The very reason I raised that is because I am very 

much concerned that the question of where the Legislature shall stop telling the 

educational establishment, the educators, what they must do :Ln the field of education. 

It was said only a little while ago here by the sponsor of the bill, I believe, that 

the only reason the Legislature ought to step in here is because those who are charged 

with the responsibility in the field of education have failed to do what the sponsor 

thinks they ought to do. And, my question basically is, is this an area that this 

Legislature ought to get involved in, particularly in view of his charge that the 

educational establishment has failed to do this? 

COMMISSIONER BURKE: I would have to differ slightly with the Senator. 

The State Board had this high on its agenda, and was working on it. I would have 

to agree with you that certainly the pace that was being set was not very fast. There 

was a fair amount of difference on the State Board - legitimate differences of 

opinion - as to whether there ought to be state standards or local standards, and 

a consensus has not yet been achieved on the State Board. I think the Senator 

felt that the issue was critical as other states have demonstrated by moving in 

this area, and in the absence of State Board action, took initiative and in many 

ways, many of the results are the same. Senator Feldman and his Committee met 

with the State Board, for example. The State Board took its thoughts and ideas, 

which had not called us to do a concensus, but they made those available to the 

Senator. We had worked with the State Board, and we made those findings available 

to Senator Feldman's staff, so in effect, what emerges, really, is something which 

is not far different from what might have otherwise been donE~. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: I take it you have no obejctions to the Legislature 

mandating this program. 

COMMISSIONER BURKE: This particular legislation, no. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: In other words, you tackle my question on a case 

by case basis. 

COMMISSIONER BURKE: Yes, I would. I could give you some generalizations, 

but I think you know what they are. They have to do with the magnitude of the 

subject and the implications it has beyond education. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: And particularly in the area cf cost, raising the 

funds. In speaking of the cost, that will be my last question, Mr. Chairman. The 

$10 million figure that you estimated - I understand how difficult it is to estimate 
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these figures - but did that take into account, was that figure predicated on 

an extended school day or an extended school year or perhaps both, and perhaps 

some other factors? 

COMMISSIONER BURKE: I might make just one quick response, and then 

ask Rich to elaborate for you. You are right. We don't know, for example, by 

1985 what it is that various school systems would do to remediate. We are learning 

a great deal and we are in the process of changing some of our own thinking. But 

if we could come up with a fair estimate of the number of youngsters who would fail 

the ninth grade test in reading, writing and computation, and we could project that 

across the years, we could do that on the basis of how they did on our existing 

testing system, we would have a rough number then of numbers of students, which is 

what we had to begin to work with. We made some assumptions that to provide additional 

remediation in addition to what is now being provided to that youngster, if that 

youngster falls within the compensatory education category, it would be approximately 

what it would cost now, $186 per student. This is why we say that is a conservative 

figure and it is probably high. This is a very hard thing to get at. 

This is why the suggestions we have made, which we think would change 

the legislation,would attempt to reorganize existing compensatory formula dollars, 

and therefore make such signficant changes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: If we went to an extended school year, what would 

you do in terms of keeping school buildings open? Would you keep them open for 

students beyond those who fall within the province of this bill, or would you keep 

them open for all students? 

COMMISSIONER BURKE: I think this would be the prerogative of the 

local school system. Some might look at this as an opportunity to move in to a 

full school year. There have been some experiments, as you know, not terribly 

successful. But, now there might be a greater impetus to do that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: If we did that, aren't we talking about much 

more than $10 million? 

COMMISSIONER BURKE: That would be a local decision. You would be 

talking more about $10 million if it came back in terms of State aid. The implications 

are that this would be a local decision to be raised by a local board, to be 

budgeted by a local board. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: But we are talking about substantially greater 

sums? 

COMMISSIONER BURKE: Well, if the entire State were to move to a full 

school year, we would have some change, but I don't see that in the legislation, 

nor do I see it in any indicators that I have. I think that the State compensatory 

education dollars, which are now generated by those same youngsters, could be used 

in a way to provide specific types of remediation dealing with them to get through 

that ninth grade exam. There are schools which already now provide an opportunity 

for youngsters to come back if they fail, and they will continue to do that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Has any plan been set up, or has any thought been 

given as to how you would implement an extended school year program for the children 

who could not pass these ninth and eleventh grade tests? 

COMMISSIONER BURKE: We had a study which we did two years ago on the 

extended school year generally, which we could provide as a basis for technical 

assistance to schools who wanted to move in that direction. I am sure we could 

bring this out and work with school districts. But, have we developed a specific 
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technical assistance plan for schools who would want to use the extended school 

year to remediate the youngsters who failed the high school graduation requirements, 

and the answer is, we have not. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Thank you, Commissioner. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Thank you very much, Commisaioner. Edithe Fulton, 

Tresurer of the New Jersey Education Association. 

ED I TH E F UL T O N: Good morning, may I extend regrets from Frank Totten 

who is not going to be with you this morning. What I would like to do is not 

read you his statement, but just go through it and highlight some of the things 

he would like me to point out to you. I would hope at a lat.er time you would 

take the opportunity to look at it more thoroughly. 

Some time ago Frank appeared before the Senate EC.ucation Committee, 

and also testified on this same concern. I am not going to repeat - nor 

is he -that entire testimony, but would just like to highlight a few things. 

The reason for our interest in this bill, of course, is our concern 

for students learning, and I would like to share with the Committee some of 

the observations that we see as the real needs of students, and suggestions 

on how working together with you as Legislators and parents, and us as the 

educational community, can benefit the children of our public schools. 

s-1154, as originally proposed, we felt, was a bill that was described 

in the problem, but not solving it. We reviewed the bill as one,at that time, that 

was penalizing children rather than helping them. For, to dE~termine whether a child 

would get a diploma by his or her performance on the single ~;tatewide test, indeed, 

is educationally unsound. We were pleased to see that S-115~, was amended in some 

respect, and of course that the sponsor, Senator Feldman, whcm I believe is a child 

advocate, was amenable to some of the suggestions that were put forth by some 

of the organizations, including NJEA. 

We have some serious concerns about the bill. We believe that the 

amended version is far more meaningful for children than the original bill, but 

we still are concerned that it did not go far enough. Primarily, one of the 

questions we raised is funding for S-1154. If diploma standards are to be 

established, then required adequate and meaningful remediation must be provided 

to the students who have difficulty reaching those standards. I do know remediation 

costs money. Local boards, already strapped by the CAP situation would even be 

placed in further lack of resources, because of the CAP proviBions. 

Mention has been made of coordinating some of the remediation program 

with the current compensatory education programs. We have raised many questions 

about the canpensatory ed. program as it is currently being founded and as it is 

currently operating. We believe that present comp. funding cannot do the job 

that is described in this bill. We are concerned with how students are identified 

as needing compensatory education, and although the administrative code provides for that 

statewide testing,itis not the only instrument to be used in evaluating students for 

comp. ed., The truth of the matter is, in many cases, that is exactly what happens. 

We also find children who do not need remediation have failed the statewide 

test. Children who need remediation somehow miraculously through, perhaps, the 

guessing method, have passed the test, and therefore we have an abundance of children 

Whose needs are not being met in either case. 

Local school boards have, across the board, sometimE~S reclassified programs. 

In Ocean County, as Dan might know, or maybe not know, I know of a particular district 
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that took all their supplemental teachers and eliminated the category, and they 

are now compensatory education teachers, corresponded by the State. If there are 

not enough funds to provide for remediation, do they provide the necessary teaching 

staff to do it? 

Student absenteeism during the administration of the minimum basic skills 

test also was a major factor in determining a number of students needing remediation 

and the money needed to fund that program. You might be skipping down a bit 

to the local districts and their requirements for present high school graduation. 

We have a great discrepancy and disparity in what local boards are requiring. We know 

-that 9 2. 6% of the local districts require four years of English, and some are lacking 

the math requirements: 73% require one year less of mathematics. Some high schools 

have no mathematics courses at all. 

No assessment procedure should assess the knowledge or skills that are 

not being taught to the students. Just a side note on the results of the MBS. 

Originally when I was teaching fourth grade and giving the test, in evaluating the 

test we had a relevancy and non-relevancy factor, was it taught in the district, 

was it not taught in the district. Yet, when the tests were scored and the results 

came out, the relevancy factor was completely ignored. The tests were scored on 

basic merit, that you had indeed presented all the ingredients of the tests that 

were given to the children. 

We urge the Corrunittee to guarantee adequate funding for S-1154. We 

offer the following amendments to S-1154, and we hope that perhaps you would take 

an interest in these. We feel there should be some language to guarantee that 

no pupil is denied a diploma based solely on his or her performance on the statewide 

assessment test. We believe there should be some comprehensive evaluation of 

the student. And, I know there was some concern expressed about waiving minimum 

standards. I don't believe that is what we have in mind. But, a child who freezes 

on a test should be given some other method, some other comprehensive evaluation to 

show that he or she can or cannot meet minimum standards, and not just a single 

test. 

We believe that the differentiated diploma, the dual diploma proposal 

can be interpreted as racism, may possibly be a violation of civil and human rights, 

and we don't feel the local boards need any more confusion. 

Remediation programs should be required for those students who are 

evaluated as needing them. Stronger language is needed to make sure this happens. 

The elements of a comprehensive evaluation should be conducted in each 

school year as part of an ongoing process and reviewed at the end and the beginning 

of each school year. S-1154 requires that the local board of education provide 

remedial instruction for those students who do not need the state and district 

examination, and this should take place at the end of tenth grade. We feel it would 

be very significant and very important to perhaps move that standard back, so that 

it takes place at the end of ninth grade. The earlier deficiencies are caught, the 

better for the child. 

Many teachers have reported that they have been under pressure by 

administration to make changes in their assessment of students. Indeed, there have 

been cases where changes in student grades have been made by administrators over the 

teachers' objections. We think language of some sort should be in there, so that 

this type of situation positively cannot happen. 

NJEA supports the concept expressed in S-1154 that says that the local 

board shall provide additional remedial instructions specifically directed toward 
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mastering of those proficiencies identified as necessary, with the awarding of a 

diploma, which may include, but need not be limited to, an extended school year, 

or an extended school day, or additional school year. You indeed have discussed 

this in the last half hour or so. 

Extended school years, and extended school days, we feel, certainly would 

impact on the terms and conditions of employment of teachers, and we feel it can be 

a major impact. We would recommend strongly that language be inserted to restrict 

existing collective bargaining laws, and that that language should be added to, say, 

perhaps that it should provide additional teaching assignments provided, and shall 

be subject to negotiations with a majority representative of the unit, including the 

teachers in question. 

NJEA believes that the current curriculum requirements mandated by the 

State for graduation should be augmented. We have too many disparities, I think, 

in what local boards are requiring. We certainly think that computations, citizenship, 

science,physical education should be offered consistent with the recorrunendations of 

the New Jersey Committee on High School Graduation Requirements. As I indicated 

earlier in the testimony, children should be assessed only on the curriculum which 

has been provided to them. To do so, I think, is totally unfair. 

In order to guarantee maximum student participation in educational 

offerings, it should be necessary for schools to carefully review how student 

absenteeism can be reduced, how the amount of parental interaction and responsibility 

in such areas of concern can be increased. We also would see a need for schools in 

the area of child services, for child study teams to determin•= that the exceptional 

children have a fair shake in the whole process. 

If I may, Mr. Chairman, in addition to the remarks I have more or less 

gone over briefly with you, I would just like to share with you some information 

about what is happening nationally with regard to minimum competency testing for 

high school graduation as reported by the Education Daily. Chris Stiffle, who 

is a member of the Education Commission of the States, a testing expert, has monitored 

State and local competency trends for over a year and found that the minimum competency 

testing for high school graduation seems to be on its way out, and offers this 

evidence. Constitutionality of statewide competency tests arE! being challenged in 

both Florj_da and North Carolina. Students are making allegations of the questions 

that test them on skills are skills that they have never learned. It is expected 

that the courts in reviewing these cases will ask the school districts for detailed 

plans and instructional materials and day-to-day summaries of what was taught. In 

those states which have not enacted testing for diplomas are watching these cases 

very carefully and proceeding with caution. We would hope New Jersey would be one 

of those states. We know Pennsylvania, Texas, Minnesota, Indiana, and Washington 

are several states that are. 

It is interesting to note what is happening in New Yprk City, as you 

also alluded to in some aspects before, as reported by the New York Times, 7,000 

seniors in the city schools have not passed the minimum co~petency test in reading 

and mathematics. The Chancellor of New York schools appealed to the Board of 

Regency to suspend the new policy, saying that it is undermining the very educational 

process that it seeks to support. Of course, the Puerto Rico Legal Defense and 

Educational Fund has filed complaints with the City and with the Federal Office for 

Civil Rights, saying that the tests have a disparate impact o:'.1 Hispanic students. 

We believe New Jersey should proceed with caution. We are beginning to 

see the repercussions in other states, and we should not be in such a hurry that· 
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we cannot learn from mistakes that are happening around our nation, and those 

implications are many on the lives of the children in our New Jersey schools. Thank 

you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Are there any questions from member,s of the Committee~? 

If not, I have two quick ones. In your testimony on page six, you r0f0rred to the 

legislation implementing the recommendations of the New Jersey Stat(' Cormni tte0 on 

Public Schools. I am familiar with that bill. That would require mandating 

course curriculum. Do I detect a reversal in your position on mandating NJEA's 

position in mandating course offerings in New Jersey? 

MS. FULTON: For our teachers? 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: You suggest that we pass Barbara McConnell's 

bill. Kno.ving something about what Barbara Mc Connell's bill is, I raise the 

question, do I detect the reversal of the NJEA's position about the legislature 

mandating curriculum. 

MS. FULTON: I don't believe, Dan, that it is an actual reversal. But, 

T think if thf' Legislature is bent on passing legislation such as S-1154, an<-! 

H;u~bara Mc Connell' s bill, A-1577, certainly will get serious considnrution, I think 

it is only right that we try to include what we think would be in the best interest 

of the students of New Jersey. Mandates are not our favorite, but we 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: That is why I was surprised to find that in there. 

I am going to frame it and put it upstairs in our Committee room. 

MS. FULTON: Well, with the momentum going on, we would like to see a 

bill that we can live with. We certainLy are not changing our position on asking 

for mandates in any area. We would like to suggest those things that we think 

would be beneficial to the students. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Thank you ver:y much. I am going to call one 

more witness before lunch. K. Kiki Konstantinos, Lenape Regional Superintendent 

of Schools on behalf of the New Jersey Association of School Administrators. 

K. K I K I K O N S T A N T I N 0 S: The New Jersey Association of School 

Administrators would like to share our views on minimum high school graduation 

requirement standards. 

As school administrators and advocates for our children, we agree that 

New Jersey students deserve, and their parents expect, an education which will enable 

a student to achieve at least a minimum level of competence to function in our 

society. 

Most of our recent efforts, during the past two years, with the implementation 

of T & E and compensatory education, have been geared towards assisting students 

to accelerate achievement in the basic communication and computation skills. 

We know that students who graduate without certain basic skills face 

debilitating obstacles in their future and continue to affect an erosion of 

credibility and support for public education. Therefore, we support efforts to 

insure high school students achieve a minimal level of competency before they can 

graduate. 

NJASA believes student achievement on a state minimum skills test should 

be one of many factors in determining whether a student graduates. Testing is 

indicative of a certain level of achievement, and test results can be quite useful 

in assessing certain proficiencies. We think such a test might also give students 

an incentive to take school more seriously. And, in this vein, we also think the district 

should be required to provide its graduation policies and standards to each student 

and parent. 
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However, we believe performance on one statewide tE~sting instrument cannot 

and should not be the all, and end all,of determining whether or not a student will 

graduate from high school. 

NJASA indicated to the Senate Education Committee that test results 

on one state test are not a perfect indicator of achievement, and we called for 

a comprehensive assessment of achievement for those students who could not pass the 

statewide test. 

We indicated local districts should be able to con::;ider a student's 

grade point average, class, rank, attendance, deportment, and performance on local 

assessment instruments to determine whether a student has demonstrated the acquisition 

of required minimal proficiencies for graduation. Therefore, we support the Senate's 

decision to include a section on Comprehensive Assessment of Pupils who do not pass 

the test. We suggest, however, that the language in Section .3, paragraph 2, lines 9a, 

be changed from "shall be eligible for a comprehensive assessment" to "shall receive 

a comprehensive assessment" to ensure that students actually receive the comprehensive 

assessment. 

While we support the inclusion of student proficiency on a minimum basic 

skills test as one of the criteria local districts should use in determining high 

school graduation requirements, we still prefer local districts being able to set 

final standards for determining who receives a diploma. 

We believe the local community, based upon the use of the instruments and 

other factors, is in the best position to determine whether a student possesses 

the necessary minimum basic skills. We believe locally detennined standards, with 

state oversight as to their adequacy, would be more meaningful as they would assess 

what the student has learned, vis-a-vis local T & E goals and objectives. 

The disturbing aspect of state mandated minimum proficiency requirements 

is the assumption that local districts are unwilling or unablt:~ to establish adequate 

minimum basic skills standards. We do not agree with this assumption. We believe 

local districts should be given the first opportunity and primary responsibility to 

develop minimum basic skills standards. 

We believe the state's role should be limited to d1~veloping a minimum 

basic skills test, setting the suggested minimum proficiency levels on the test, 

monitoring the use of such test data, support for attendance, and discipline procedures, 

and monitoring the adequacy of the local criteria for graduation. 

NJASA does not support the granting of two different types of diplomas. 

We believe this will unnecessarily differentiate, stigmatize, categorize and label 

students. It would be much better to have the basic skills and proficiency levels 

placed on the student's transcript and permanent record. This ensures a ready 

availability of such information, but does not unnecessarily stigmatize a student 

through a display certificate. We know many students who wen~ under-achievers in 

high school who later matured, entered colleges and/or the work force, and succeeded. 

We should place the burden on employers to ask for transcripts containing basic skills 

proficiency and attendance data, rather than labelling students for a lifetime by 

awarding them less than a full diploma. 

NJASA also agrees wholeheartedly that testing for the purpose of 

detennining proficiency should be accomplished early in a student's career, thus 

providing multiple opportunities to remediate and to pass these tests. To this end, 

the ninth grade is the latest the basic assessment instruments should be given. 

We caution this Committee that the Legislature must commit itself 
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financially to remediating deficiencies in the basic skills if it expects a system 

in New Jersey where almost every student will be able to demonstrate competence in 

the basic skills. 

This program of testing and remediation will be expensive to implement. 

If a financial conunitment supporting these programs is not present, local districts 

will be seriously handicapped in their efforts to achieve the goals of S-1154. 

The New Jersey Association of School Administrators thank> you for 

considering our views on this most important matter and stands ready to work with 

the legislature in developing workable and effective high school graduation standards. 

Mr. Chairman, I would like to make a small personal statement, other 

than my Association.• s position. I feel that legislative mandates may provide some 

effective results. However, unless the educational systems can exert proper control, 

through t •.eir own authority, these mandates will go for naught, because you can 1 t 

teach or remediate students who do not come to school, or students who misbehave, 

and are disruptive when they do come to school. I find that basically our problem 

is not dropouts as it was in the fifties; it is more the school drop-in, the 

younqster who comes occasionally, and when he does come, creates problems. You can't 

be responsible for teaching children who are not th<:,re. I would think that the 

legislature should pass statutes which enable courts to interpret statutes in such a 

way that they would support the authority of the school when it comes to attendance 

and discipline. Thank you, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Thank you. I don't want you to think that out of 

all the people in the State of New Jersey you have to have the answer to this 

question, but the previous witness, and now you, have talked about the cost. We 

fund education in New Jersey from a state level, some almost one billion and a half 

dollars. In 1975, it was $650 million, and next year it is going to be one hilli0n, 

four hundred million, or perhaps a bit more. With the local effort, educational 

costs in New Jersey are four billion dollars. And, probably - and I am not going to 

get into the argument of whether we are first or second - we spend more monc~y in 

educating per student in New Jersey than probably anybody in the United States, 

except occasionally one state or another. 

Why must this bill be funded? Why can't the people in New Jersey expect 

that the educational process, for the kinds of money they invest in it, needs to 

be specially funded to deliver the product that we started out to do, and we were 

empowered to do in the first instance? Why should failure be further rewarded by 

the taxpayers of New Jersey? I ask you that because you are an administrator, and 

I will ask the next witness too, because she represents the school boards. But, why 

should we be expected to put up more money to reward failure? 

MR. KONSTANTINOS: I believe the language in the bill indicates that 

there should be some extra effort exerted in terms of extended school days, extended 

school year, extended effort for a small number of students or a large number, whatever 

the case may be, that needs special remediation. Remediation of that type, oftentimes, 

is effective on a one-to-one basis, or a very small group to a teacher basis. I can 

only speak from my own personal experience. My teacher/pupil ratio .- one teacher to 

twenty students-effects a certain economical delivery of that system. If that is 

reduced to one teacher for fifteen students on an average, ·it is going to cost more 

money. Now, the money doesn~always necessarily have to come from an outside source. 

It could be a re-allocation of current funds, which then means some other things would 

have to go by the wayside, which then means your public becomes very critical of you 
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in the sense that you are taking away a program that they like to accomplish another 

program that is mandated. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Okay, I accept your answer to that. I just wanted 

to point out page two of your testimony, because previous witnesses have commented 

that one disturbing aspect of the program is the local boardE having 

a right to do this. I might just point out, as you know, they already 

have that right, and had we had this kind of reaction by local boards of education 

over the years, we wouldn't be sitting here this morning. The sponsor himself 

alluded to the fact that most of what he is trying to do in this bill, not all of 

it, could have been acquired through the administrative process, and certainly is 

within the prerogative of the local board of education right now. 

MR. KONSTANTINOS: I agree with you. We do have that province, and I think 

if you would look at each of the school systems in the State, you would find that 

a very vast majority are accomplishing the goal of minimum basic skills of their 

high school graduates. There is always going to be that 5%, 7%, or 10% of the 

students who don't attend school and don't have the intellectual ability to do this, 

~o have other kinds of psychological problems that will affect them so they can't 

accomplish the basic skills, and they are the ones who are tainted, when they go out 

for a job, with the idea that they are functional illiterates, or they can't read, 

and they are the horror stories that the employers and the private citizens make 

of the educational system, yet, they comprise a very small number of people. It 

would seem to me that there ought to be some information given to the public on this. 

Secondly, any errployer that hires a youngster without checking his transcript 

deserves whatever type youngster they get, vis-a-vis the attendance, deportment, 

reliability, consistency of that child. Colleges don't do it. If they want to 

accept a youngster to school, they look at the transcripts~ they find out what 

that child has done throughout his high school career. That doesn't happen with 

employers. They hire people who walk in without any background or knowledge of it, 

and then they say, the educational system has failed. 

Thirdly, I feel that all education and all the systems in the State take 

a wrap because we deal with averages. When you have large concentrations of students 

in particular areas representing a relatively small number of school districts who 

have problems with achieving the minimum basic skills levels, whatever they are, and 

whoever places them there, that large number of students spread across the State 

increases the average across the State. You will probably find 90% of the schools, 

and 95% of the students in those schools will meet whatever minimum basic skills 

device you will put forth. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Any questions? 

ASSEMBLYMAN SAXTON: When Commissioner Burke was here we asked him 

a question about other states that may be involved in this t~~e of testing program, 

and he said there was Florida and there were also some cities who were involved, 

and it is difficult to draw a comparison, because when you have a test tset up on 

a municipal level, or on a school district level, it is a different type of thing 

and you alluded to the same thing when you talked about havin9 each school system 

develop its own minimum standard testing procedure, which mig:'.lt be subject to the 

approval of the Commissioner. Would you think that would be a more meaningful 

system, having the State develop a statewide test? Are then:~ some advantages in 

pursuing that? 

MR. KONSTANTINOS: I think it is already there. The only reason I support 

this personally is it is a vehicle by which we can establish some credibility to the 
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public that we are doing a job. Right now, they take those few cas0s, the smdll 

percentage of cases, and claim that all youngsters have this problem. If this were 

in place, I think you would begin to find that that minimum basic functional skill 

or life skills, whatever you want to call it, is far exceeded by the requirements 

for the determination of a diploma from individual hiqh schools is far exceeded, 

because we are talking about a ninth grade level of functioning. And, many youngsters 

are way above that. My concern would be, if a youngE".tnr passes this in the nj nth 

grade, to say, well, I can earn the State diploma, now I will quit school becau~;e 1 

have reached this minimum level. That is the dangm: of setting minimum levels. 

People come down to them, instead of going up to what we consider a max. Thal would 

be one of our big problems. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SAXTON: Would you say that if minimum standards were:' 

established on a district by district basis would you see higher standards 

than those we might establish on a statewide test generally? 

MR. KONSTANTINOS: I think they would be higher standards. However, you 

have the danger of people accommodating their own desires through a testing device 

to make themselves look better in some instances. That is the problem that we face. 

Tf you are spending this kind of money, I think you have to prove that certain things 

<1.n' happening at least on a minimum level. It is unfortunate, but that is the name 

of the game. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN GARVIN: I have one question. When you referred to tho.sr~ 

developing the test, who are you referring to developing the tests? In other wc)rds, 

if the test would be improper and fallacious or something, what did you mean by that 

statement? In other words, the test would not be real if it were developed on a 

local basis? Is that what you mean? 

MR. KONSTANTINOS: Well, it would be real, but if each local district 

established that minimum, per se, the mird mum in my district miqht be somewhat 

higher or lower than the minimum in a neighboring di strict, and it would depend on 

each board in each community to say what <:i minimum basic skill would be to graduate 

as they do now. And, we are doing this now. A lot of youngsters have great educations~ 

however, we are still being humbled by the· fact that there is an inequity here, and 

people are not receiving the kind of education they should be for the money that is 

being spent. So, I think you almost need a floor set by the consultation of local 

districts, educators, and the State, which says, this is a minimum. Even at that, you 

are going to have youngsters who won't pass it, because of the inate inequities that 

the Lord has devised in passing out intelligence, and other kinds of factors. You are 

going to even have a problem with that, but it will be a smaller number. 

At least it will prove to the State and the public that youngsters with 

a high school diploma have achieved at a floor or minimum level. I wouldn't accept 

it. For instance, in our school, we put in a very severe attendance pulse. We found 

that by cutting the senior attendance, absentee rate, by two-thirds, and the rest of 

the students by one-half, that a greater number of youngsters make the honor roll, and 

we have more youngsters graduate, and less failing to graduate, and all these benefits 

accrue. In our basic skills, I think we had about 3% who didn't make the cutoff of the 

State in the whole district~ that is 5300 high school kids. Bringing the youngsters 

to school and having them there so that teachers can teach is an important and effective 

way to accomplish this. And, I am not fearf 1.ll of any minimum basic skills test the 

State might put out, because I know my youngsters, based on the tests they are taking 

now,will be passing those minimum basic skills in the tenth <"lnd oleventh grade level 

with no problem. That is not going to happen some other places. The finger is going 
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to be pointing at them. So, if the finger is pointed at them, and they have to 

devise that minimum, would they or could they not devise it so it was lower so that 

more of their kids would pass, and then they would present ~' rd c ture that al 1 our 

youngsters are meeting this too. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN GARVIN: Thank you. Mr. Chairman, just have one f>tatcmcnt 

to make. I think it always bothers me when an educator uses th0 term illnatcty. I 

want to take issue with that term. I think there are learning l·~v2J:,; ,'d1d th0rc arc 

def icienci.es, but I think in the field of education om:• should be cautious wi f h 

saying people are innately this or that. 

MR. KONSTANTINOS: I didn't refer to any people, Mrs. Garvin. r taught 

biology, and I think I know what the word innately means. Ther0 is a point to what 

you are saying. I am not coloring or painting a picture of any great number of people, 

but I know that we have classified students in my district - my own nephew, for instance, 

has the Down's syndrome. That is a mongoloid. He innately will not be able to pass 

this test at any time in his life. And, I feel for hi:n, okay. But that is what 

I am saying. I am suggesting that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Okay, thank you very much. Linda Albert, New 

Jersey School Boards Association. 

L I N D A A L B E R T: Good morning. I am Linda Albert, President of th~ New 

Jersey School Boards Association, representing the 611 school boards in the state. 

I want to thank you for giving me the opportunity to represent those school districts 

here this morning. 

I speak this morning on behalf of the school board members througriout the 

state in support of S-1154. However, we do seek an amendment that would cl_; rrinate 

the dual diploma. 

Last October, th? New Jersey School Boards Ai:;sociation' s Delegate .l\sse~mbly 

voted overwhelmingly to endorse the report of our association's committee whjch 

studied high school graduation requirements, and we would be happy to make a r:r;rj 1 

of that report available to the Conunittee if you do not already have that. 

The Committee n~cornn1<:.:nded the following things: 

1. Uniforrn, f'tatewide standards in reading, writing, and computation a:-; a 

high school graduation requirement for all students. Individualized ;·t:.andard:: stiou Ld 

be developed for students in special educational programs; 

A state graduation exam to test these proficie~cies, providing that 

alternative methods of assessment may be used for students who appear to have 

the skills, but repeatedly fail the exam~ the state test would be a logical 

extension of the present minimum basic skills testing program; 

3. Locally determined graduation - I repeat - locally determined graduation 

requirements and standards which include, but may exceed, the state requirerrents~ 

4. Remedial programL, beginning in the early grades, for all students 

who fail to meet state and local requirement; We believE~ that early remediation is 

essential and that we could not attempt this kind of bill without such remediation 

in the early grades. 

5. Implementation of the graduation requirements sufficiently far in the future 

to permit ample opportunity to remediate students presently in the system; clearly, 

the bill does provide for that in that it would not he initiated until a period far 

in the future. 

6. A single diploma for graduation, which is given only to students who fll(;et 

all State and local requirements; a student who passes t:>ie graduation exam, but. 
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fails to meet other requirements would receive a state certificate, but would 

not graduate and would not receive a diploma. 

7. No state standards in other areas. The only areas where we would support 

state standards would be reading, writing, and computation - no additional state 

mandated courses. 

8. Local, but not state, policies for pupil promotion from grade to grade. 

As you can see, of those eight points, many of them include a very strong 

emphasis on local control and on local decision making, which the school district 

believes is appropriate under the T & E concept and individualized instruction. 

The New Jersey School Boards Association supports S-1154 insofar as it 

accomplishes these ends. In only one respect do we differ. We recommend the bill 

be amended to eliminate the provision that permits a local diploma to be given to 

a student who fails to meet state and local standards. We strongly object. This 

provision undermines the whole thrust of the bill. It provides an "escape hatch," 

a way to graduate students without ever requiring them to demonstrate competency. 

While recognizing that S-1154 is no panacea, the New Jersey School Boards 

Association believes that the imposition of statewide graduation standards will help 

local boards of education in their efforts to assure that all students are graduated 

with the basic skills necessary to function in today's complex society. The bill is 

wisely drawn with provision for early testing and an alternative method of assessment, 

remedial help, and a long phase-in period. We are pleased the State has limited its 

requirements to proficiencies in the basic skills and has not ventured into other 

areas which we believe are the purview of the local district. 

S-1154 is a natural capstone to the system of state testing standards, which 

already exist - and to the remediation which already exists. In effect, the bill is 

a statement of belief - a belief in our young people and in our schools. Certainly 

public education in the State of New Jersey has been under very close scrutiny, and 

we need to re-emphasize our belief in the public schools from time to time. We believe 

that it is important also to call attention to the fact that we have faith in the 

ability of our students to learn. Students can learn and that includes urban and 

minority students, and the job of the schools is to see to it they do learn. 

By raising the level of expectation, we will bring back into the mainstream 

many of those who are now passed over and ou~ much to their detriment. 

Many arguments have been raised against statewide standards for graduation. The 

New Jersey School Boards Association believes it is important to address each of 

these concerns. 

One of the major arguments is that urban and minority students will be the 

primary groups denied diplomas. State graduation standards would be unfair to them 

so the argument goes. 

This may be true in the short run, but the diplomas now granted are virtually 

worthless if the student does not have the skills necessary to function in our society. 

It is a cruel deception to give such a diploma and perpetuate the myth of the urban 

student's inability to learn. I wish to call the Committee's attention to the action 

taken by the Urban Boards' Committee of the New Jersey School Boards Association. They 

overwhelmingly support the bill with the single diploma provision, and these are the 

people who set the policy in the urban school districts throughout the State, and they 

believe it is in the best interests of our minority and urban students that we have 

such standards as provided by this bill. 
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Early identification and remediation, coupled with meaningful standards for 

graduation from high school, should give students the special assistance and the 

motivation necessary to graduate. 

The present system, which has graduated students lacking basic skills, 

stigmatizes all urban students by creating a credibility gap for the urban diploma. 

The public, especially employers, cannot know whether the diploma was earned or 

the result of purely social promotion and graduation. 

Students in bilingual programs may appear to be particularly hurt by an exit 

exam that requires proficiency in English. However, New Jer:3ey 1 s bilingual education 

program is designed to develop competency in both the native language and in English. 

It would be a grave disservice to students whose native lanquage is not English and 

who have not developed at least minimum proficiencies in English to grant them a 

diploma when they cannot function in a society which require:3 the ability to read, 

write and speak English. 

A second argument against State graduation standards iB that they would penalize 

the student for the school's failure. 

Let's talk about penalties for a moment. I know you are going to ask me some 

questions about that later. This can scarcely be described as a bill designed to 

penalize students. There are all kinds of safeguards built into the bill. There is 

a long lead-in period before a diploma will ever be withheld.. The graduating class of 

1985, some six years from now, will be the first to be affected. And those students, 

our present sixth graders, will have had six years of remedial help to bring them 

up to par. 

Statewide etesting in the third, sixth, ninth and elE~venth grades will have 

identified those who are falling behind. Present law already requires special 

assistance to these students. S-1154 requires additional remediation for those who fail 

to pass the exit exam by the end of tenth grade. If the system operates as it should, 

and it is our responsibility to see to it that it does, then this intensive focus on 

the basic skills would have brought the results and these students would have gained 

the skills they so sorely needed. This is not a system desi9ned to penalize. This 

is a system designed to help students. 

If the system is imperfect, if remediation is ineffective, then remedies must 

be found and found quickly. It may be that the ultimate sanction at the end of the 

process, the possibility that students may not graduate, will provide the pressure 

to get the system working. We do know that it is a cruel hoax to pretend that students 

are learning if, in fact, they are not. The real penalty a lifetime sentence 

is ignorance. We must avoid this penalty at all costs. 

Some have argued that state standards would be set too low~ the minimum would 

become the maximum. State standards would probably be directly related to the present 

minimum basic skills test and the eleventh grade standard. Presumably this standard 

has been set at the level that is necessary to function in society. If it is too low, 

it could be adjusted upwards. As for the minimum becoming the maximum, that is not 

likely. Local boards would retain their responsibility to set district proficiency 

standards in reading, writing, and computation. Because the state's standards are 

minimal, many communities will demand higher local standards. This is a matter of local 

pride, aspiration, and tradition. Districts that now have high standards are not 

likely to change. District boards woullalso set other graduation requirements, and 

these will be as extensive and rigorous as the community demands. 

It has also been said that student motivation would be diminished after passing 

the test. Students who passed the test in ninth or tenth grade would not take school 
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seriously after that. 

That is unrealistic. The students would still have to pass their 

remaining courses and meet other district graduation requirements. Those who are 

going on to college would still be working to compete for scholarships and admission 

to the colleges of their choice. 

Some argue that teachers will teach to the test. What is wrong with that 

when the test measuresbasic skills that a student needs? If testing encourages 

teachers to teach the essentials more effectively and enco11rages students to learn, 

then tests are a valuable part of the educational process. 

It is important to remember that all S-1154 would test is the basic skills 

of reading, writing and arithmetic. This is not a full-blown regents system of tests 

in every subject area. To speak of "teaching to the test" as a major issue is to 

tilt at windmills. A basic skills test should not be used as an excuse to back away 

from the broad responsibilities of the classroom teacher, which on a high school 

level, encompass teaching more than the basic skills. 

A more serious argument has been made that remedial programs are a form of 

tracking and can result in racial segregation. 

To that I must reply that remedial programs are already a part of the present 

system of basic skills standards, testing, and remediation. Whatever problems we 

have will not be created by S-1154 since remedial programs are required under present 

law. Local school boards and the State Department of Education must work together to 

ensure that tracking and segregation do not take place. 

And, finally, it has been charged that state graduation standards would 

increase the drop-out rate, especially among urban and minority students, thus 

depriving them of the benefits of schooling. Surely, if our urban board members 

believe this were possible, they would not have so strongly supported this. 

For students attempting a high school program without basic skills, the 

benefits of schooling are minimal at the present. Standards might cause more 

students to "drop into" high school, rather than out. The experience in Denver, 

Colorado, was that the drop-out rate did not change significantly when graduation 

standards were initiated. It is also possible that a system with large numbers of 

non-graduating students, or drop-outs, might be forced into finding more innovative 

and effective ways to help these students. 

In closing, let me say that if S-1154 becomes a reality, and its purpose 

is fulfilled, graduates of New Jersey's high schools will be able to hold their heads 

high. The diploma, which has shrunk in value as surely as the dollar, will once 

again be a symbol of learning. Our students deserve this satisfaction and sense of 

pride. Our communities demand it. It is our joint responsibility as public officials 

to see that this happens. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Thank you. I don't have to ask you that question, 

because you may have started a trend here in New Jersey that just might get hold. 

In the way of a compliment in expressing myself as well, you managed to go through 

your whole testimony and talked about kids. Maybe you will start an epidemic or 

something. Aspemblyman Saxton. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SAXTON: No questions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Mrs. Garvin. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN GARVIN: I have a question relating to the certificate 

on page two, item six, where you are recommending that if they fail to meet other 

requirements they will receive a state certificate. 

MS. ALBERT: Yes, the certificate would simply say that the student had 
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passed the graduation exam required by the State. It would be a certificate of 

accomplishment of the standards or the examination. It would not be a diploma. Our 

delegates, our board of directors, our urban board members felt very strongly that 

there should be one diploma, and that diploma should only be awarded if the student 

did two things: pass the test, and meet local standards. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN GARVIN: I have lost confidence in t::1e urban school boards 

association because I think to have a certificate as a part of the process is really 

going to affect urban districts. I say that because when we deal with urban school 

districts, I am of the opinion that we are still dealing with myths, and I guess I 

have seen it since I have been in Trenton more than anything else. I think the urban 

schools have produced and will continue to produce brilliant students, and they have 

brilliant students. Because of society, or even the process of, say, Title One 

districts, whereby your local boards of education are appointed by your chief executive. 

Many times these very board members lack the kind of conunitmE~nt that I feel young 

people deserve, so I would not have confidence in a state certificate based on a 

board. If the urban boards have supported this, then I personally am disappointed, 

because I have problems with any certification in the educational process, only 

because I lack the confidence in how local boards - many local boards, not all of 

them - function. 

To me, to have a certificated process, is no better than having a two 

diploma process, and I am really disappointed, but I think, ~nowing urban board 

members, as I do, I am not surprised, but I would like to say that your presentation 

was very good. I agree with Danny, we very seldom get things that deal with the 

issues, and you have dealt with the issues. But, that item six really disturbs me. 

I have another question about the social promotion. In your experience and 

in your overview, do you still find that is a problem? Do you think local boards are 

still doing it as much as they were? Don!t you see a reversal in social promotion? 

Hasn't there been a reversal in social promotion, say, in the last seven years? 

MS. ALBERT: I can only speak about my own experience locally. I don't 

have any data that I can provide for you on a statewide basis now. Maybe that data 

is available, but I don't have it here with me at this moment. 

My own experience in my local district is that there has been less social 

promotion. I believe there has been much more concern for seeing to it that their 

students reach a certain level of proficiency before they move from grade to grade. 

I think, though, that it is still a concern in many places throughout this 

State. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN GARVIN: I think it is a concern, but I wanted the record to 

show that it was not as great a concern as it has been in the past. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Thank you, Ms. Albert. 

MS. ALBERT: Could we just take one moment to have someone from our 

governmental relations department, Jeanne Reock, respond to the point that Assemblywoman 

Garvin made about the certificate. She has some information she would like to share 

with you on that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Surely. 

J E A N N E R E O C K: I would just like to clarify what is intended by that 

certificate. It would be given, not by the local board of education, but by the 

State Department of Education, and the idea arose when we thought of that student 

who did not meet the local requirements for graduation, but had passed the State test. 

And, the feeling was that he or she should have some recognition of that fact, even 
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though they were not graduating, and couldn't get a diploma, this is in no way 

akin to a certificate of attendance or a meaningless piece of paper given by a local 

board to kind of pretend that students are graduating. It simply says, "I have passed 

the State test,"and it would be given by the State. The local board would not have 

any discretion on that. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN GARVIN: Again, even with that explanation, I have problems 

with a certificate being awarded by another body. I would rather see, if there 

were a certificated process - and in its present form I do not support the bill -

I would rather see that process dealt with on a local level rather than to delegate 

that to the State. You know, I really have problems with that, and I really have to 

review it, because, perhaps, as we push out young people in the educational process, 

if local districts push them out, then the State really will come in with a certificate 

to say, well, you have accomplished something. And, I am not sure--- I have to give 

this some thought. 

MS. REOCK: That is very understandable. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Thank you very much. We will recess until one forty-five 

promptly. 

(Whereupon a luncheon recess was taken.) 
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AFTERNOON SESSION: 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Dr. Milton Schwebel. 

D R. M I L T 0 N S C H W E B E L: My name is Milton Schwebel, Profossoi· 

at the Graduate School of Applied and Professional Psychology at Rutgers, and 

before that, I was Dean of the Graduate School of Education at Rutgers for a period 

of ten years. 

I will read my statement in the interest of time. The Senators who 

supported this bill undoubtedly place a high value on literacy in all its forms. 

I share that value with them. I want to make that clear beyond a shadow of doubt, 

and I want to stress my conviction that children are cheated of their birthright 

if they do not have the opportunity to master the reading, writing, speech and 

computational skills necessary to function in late twentieth-century society. 

But, while I share that value with the Senators, I am not persuaded that 

their bill is capable of gaining the outcomes that presumably they intended, namely, 

raising the level of performance of the children. On the contrary, th0·i r bill wi 11 

have, the opposi i~e eff cct. It will create the illusion of change'. In my view, it 

will give the impression that the legislature has initiated a s0ries of aciion:.'> that 

j n the end will produce the literacy we desire, whereas it will, I fear, validdtc' the:' 

adage that the more things change, the more they stay the same. There will be the 

facade of change - at least we are doing something - which might satisfy concerned 

citizens and parents and lull them into silence, while five or ten years of possible 

real changes are lost. In my view, the most significant change will be the price that 

many children will pay. But more on that later. 

If I believed that a bill of this type were in the interest of the children 

and of the state, I would support this particular version, for it has some fine 

features. First, the assessment of the 10th grade students will not begin untjl 

1982-83, giving them about two years to feel the impact of the bill while in junior 

high school, though none during their elementary years. Second, the as1~essment proc<"durp 

is vc-ry flexible and makes allowances for students who, for example, "tr0('7.e" i.n 

taking a crucial exam or whose disabilities handicap them in a written exam. 'I'hird, 

the Commissioner of Education is directed to prepare guidelines for remediation 

procedures thereby presumably providing valuable assistance to all districts. Finally, 

and most important, each board of education is to submit to the Commissioner "required 

programs designed to provide the opportunity for pupils to progress toward the mastery 

of proficiencies required for graduation." 

Why do I refer to this clause as "most important"? Because it is the heart 

of the bill. Because it goes to the heart of the problem of literacy insofar as 

schools can have leverage over it. Because that clause - the development of programs 

that provide the opportunity for mastery of literacy proficiencies - should be the bill. 

That, then, is the first of six reasons for opposing this bill, namely, 

that it is the wrong bill at this time. We need to use our energy and our resources 

to change our system of insturction not in setting standards for children. This 

hill is a case of the dog wagging the tail. 

The second reason is that the children of the state are being held 

accountable for the inadequacies of us the adults. In the midst of the hysteria about 

basic skills we are hitting out in all directions, but in the end we do not decide 

to hold the State Board of Education accountable for the high proportion of children 

who fail to reach desired levels of literacy. We do not charge the Commissioner of 
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Education, the local boards of education, or the superintendents, principals or 

teachers with responsibility for outcomes. No, we choose instead to have the 

children bear the brunt of our failure to come up with effective ways of educating 

them; and that means the children who enter with the fewest advantages, those who 

are the least comfortable in school and possess the least hope that school will 

change their lives; the children whose parent - and many have but one - or parents 

are the least prepared in terms of time and skill to influenc·e the policies of the 

schools; and so these children who very early have their self-esteem scarred will 

suffer a further blow as the capstone to their high school ex:;>er ience. They will, 

at least, if the legislation is passed and carried out as written. If not, that is, 

if the flexibility is so extreme that only in rare instances will a state-endorsed 

diploma be denied - in other words, if it will amount to no more than a going-through­

the-motions of abiding by the bill - then valuable resources will have been wasted and 

valuable years lost in accomplishing what is needed, namely, major changes in programs 

of instruction. 

So far as literacy is concern~d, the university graduate school blames the 

college; the college, along with business and government, blames the elementary 

school; the upper elementary blames the primary~ the primary blames the kindergarten, 

and all of them blame the parents. This bill, in effect,blamE~s the children, and 

goes beyond by making them pay for it, while everyone else goes scot-free. The 

answer is not to find a scapegoat, but first and foremost to make the educational 

system of the state responsible for seeing to the development: and statewide 

implementation of programs that work. 

The third reason is that when a deficiency is known to exist, a testing 

program changes virtually nothing and turns our attention in the wrong direction. A 

few years ago when the former Chancellor of Higher Education proposed to introduce 

a literacy test for college freshmen, some of us objected, though not to the test per se. 

Our argument was that what was needed was a change in the status of written 

composition in post-secondary education. If students are infrequently called upon to 

write reports, and if quizzes and exams are short answer or multiple choice, they 

cannot possibly be expected to develop writing skill. Spend the money, we urged, 

on changing the practices in the colleges. That is my positicn about this bill. Spend 

the money in doing a statewide long-term effort to develop programs specially directed 

toward achieving the current definitions of functional literacy; our statewide 

assessment program will inform us when we are having success; when that happens, 

if people are still interested, then initiate a graduation standard such as in this 

bill. The proper time to introduce new quality-control standards is after - not 

before - new quality has been introduced into programs. General Motors does not 

employ 198l's quality control standards when it inspects 1979 models. 

In that connection, let me add that no effective change to new modes of 

instruction can be accomplished without the very direct involv,ement of teachers. 

Teachers must have confidence in the new approaches and be eager to use them. 

Since that involvement takes time, and since the reading of written compositions 

takes time, we are hardly going to help our children by cutting school budgets and 

discharging teachers. 

The fourth reason is that the hysteria in the nation about basic skills 

has prompted many well-intentioned acts of desperation instead of cool-headed decisions 

based on a critical examination of the facts. This country ha;s never been faced with 

educating so large a portion of its population, nor, until sevE~ral generations ago 
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has it set so high a level of literacy for the general population. We are still 

learning how to deal with these changes. At the same time, we have saddled the 

schools with very heavy burdens. We seem to have disregarded the principle that 

mastery in learning depends in part on time; that in general the more time given 

to a subject, the higher the achievement. Yet, in the fact of that, the schools 

have been called upon to use their classroom time to help cope with the serious 

social problems of crime, alcoholism, drug addiction, disease, violence, premarital 

pregnancy, family disruption and the-like, as well as with health and dental care. 

The schools cannot be the dumping ground of the ills of society and at the same time 

be expected to function in the teaching of cormnunication as we would like. Least 

of all should the children be held accountable for such changed circumstances in 

the schools. 

The fifth reason is that the primary goal of our schools is, or ought to 

be, to serve children well, presumably in New Jersey through a thorough and efficient 

system of education. It is not to give status to high school diplomas. Of course, 

it is absurd to expect that diploma to reattain the status it had when only 7% of 

the population earned it and fewer than 1% finished college. The goal of our schools 

is not to assist personnel officers in selections. They can evaluate a person's 

skills in the 3 R's in a matter of moments. Rather,it is to help children make 

themselves literate and intelligent through the social transactions in the school. 

The sixth reason is that so-called "get tough" policies are based on wrong 

assumptions insofar as most children are concerned. The problem is not that, like 

Tom Sawyer, they go off fishing instead of to school. It is, as I have tried to 

show, more complex than that and more related to our limitations than the 

children's. 

For the reasons I have enumerated, if I bore the heavy responsibility of 

an Assemblyman or Assemblywoman, I would oppose this bill and propose one that was 

directed at the problem and could be expected to have more of a pay-off for the heavy 

investment of time and of the taxpayer's money. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN GARVIN: Thank you. I appreciate your testimony. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: I would just raise one point. On page three, the 

kinds of things you see the school doing is in the social and medical fjelds and 

mental health and the other things we have dumped on the schools over a course of 

years in New Jersey. Youare suggesting that that has finally caught up with us 

as relates to a matter of time available in the schools. 

DR. SCHWEBEL: I think,among other factors, that is one that has caught 

up on us. It has caught up over the years, especially since World War II, anci that 

is the period we have seen decline. I don't want to reduce it to that factor, of 

course, because there are many others involved. 

May I make just one further staterrent? I want to point out that when I 

speak about a program, about a possible substitute for a bill of this kind, I don't 

want to be left with the notion that I am speaking of some ambiguous ways. There 

are new ways, effective ways, general approaches to instructjon that have been tested 

and tried now in the United States over the last L:n or twelve years, and tried 

abroad as well. I am speaking not about hitting out and finding some new way to 

teach fifteen children home economics or some new fad. I am speaking about some 

very basic approaches to changing instruction in our schools, and if I were 

involved in spending the monies that you are going to spend on this bill, I would 

spend it to mandate that the Cormnissioner of Education take the leadership with the 
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Board of Education in helping teachers a,nd principals and sd:.ool districts become 

familiar with this new mode, have workshops for them to be involved in utilizing 

them, and introducing them in the schools. These, I want to reiterate, are tried 

and tested in the cities of the United States, not in some fancy private schools, 

among other places, in the central schools in Chicago and they have been found 

effective at virtually all levels, and in teaching a variety cf subjects, including 

reading. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Thank you very much, Doctor. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: I have just one question. Dr. Schwebel, in view of 

what you said here, could I infer'· or would it be correct to say that the Legislature 

is not the place to make a determination of how the problem cf educating children 

should rest. In other words, shouldn 1 t it rest····-- Putting it another way, shouldn 1 t 

that responsibility rightfully rest with the Cormnissioner of Education and the State 

Board of Education, rather than this legislature? 

DR. SCHWEBEL: I don't question the role of the State Legislature in 

carrying out the mandate of a thorough and efficient system of education, nor 

introducing any legislation or policies that will help us achieve that in the 

State I certainly do believe, of course, and I am sure you practice this too, that 

you seek advice from professionals in the field, including, of course, the Cormnissioner 

of Education and the State Board of Education. 

I am not sure that I understand your question, Assemblyman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Well, just to make it clearer, we had the Corrrrnissioner 

testifying this morning. I don't know if you were here to hear his cormnentary---

DR. SCHWEBEL: I was not. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Well, during the course of his presentation, he 

indicated Chapter 212 specifically, but I think there are other laws in Title 18 

that give him very broad powers, and he indicated through Chapter 212 the C0 rmnissioner 

has very broad powers in providing for the thorough and efficient education. We 

have passed twelve. We have given them direction, and my question is, having 

done that, and if he does have the broad powers he has, is it really necessary for 

this legislature, or any legislature, to determine how that is going to be accomplished? 

DR. SCHWEBEL: I know that Chapter 212 provides authority not only to 

evaluate the high school graduation requirements we have given high schools, but 

it also stresses the cormnunications skills. Now, however, I would favor not a 

reactive, but a pro-active stance, but that the active stance be in connection with 

programs, rather than with evaluation. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: That is fine. I have no quarr·el with that. But, is 

this legislature competent to make a determination as it is implied in what you said, 

now, to determine what programs are going to be carried out? 

DR. SCHWEBEL: I believe the Legislature is certainly competent to 

determine that the priority now is the introduction of new modes of instruction 

to have the significant effect on our school system, rather t:~an determining that 

we should introduce a new testing scheme, which, in a sense, is a kind of redundant 

scheme, because there is plenty of authority to evaluate. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Except, if we accept your pn~mise, the moment that 

what is required to provide for literacy, to provide for an education, rests with 

new programs rather than with testing. I accept that for a moment. I will ask you, 

is the legislature the proper forum, the proper body, to make a determination 

that new programs shall be instituted in the schools, or rath1~r is that the province 

and the responsibility of the Cormnissioner and the State Board of Education? 
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DR. SCHWEBEL: I think it is the responsibility of those in the fjl'ld, 

those in education, professional educators, including the Corrunissicm0r to make• 

such decisions and recommendations. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Thank you, Doctor. Our next witness is the 

Chancellor of Higher Education, Dr. Hollander. 

rr. EDWARD H 0 L L A N D E R: My name· is Ted Hollander. I am the 

Chancellor with the Department of Higher Education. I am very pleased to be h<:.>rc 

and testify on a bill which I think will have significant impact on the quality of 

higher education in the State. Senator Feldman, Assemblyman Newman, and all of 

you, should be commended for your desire to improve the educational attainment of 

our young people. 

There is no greater issue for this State than providing our young people 

with an education adequate to function in a complex society. Unemployment today 

is largely attributable to a growing number of young people who are overschooled 

and undereducated~ too many of our young people simply cannot function effectively 

at the levels needed to fill available entry level jobs. 

Basic skills deficiencies result from a variety of factors often beyond 

the control of educators, yet we in education must find ways to improve the education 

of our young people. 

In my view, one important step is to set standards that are high enough 

to be meaningful and to expect and help our young people to achieve them. 

S-1154 makes a start in that direction through the establishment of a 

standard for high school graduation. It has been demonstrated in other states that 

high school graduation standards are an effective, if only partial, solution to 

the basic skills problem. 

However, while I am generally supportive of your effort, I must respPctfully 

oppose· the provision in the bill for the awarding of two types of high school 

diplomas. Having come to New Jersey from a State, NPw York, which implcmentPd this 

same concept, I can assure you that it is fraught with major difficulti0s and 

contradjctions. 

We in New Jersey have committed ourselves to providing every child wi.th 

a "thorough and efficient" education. We have applied major resources toward 

achieving this goal. Is it consistent, in light of our commitment to "T & E, 11 

to allow the schools to merely award worthless diplomas to students whom they 

fail to provide even a minimum education? It is my experience that the concept of 

two diplomas will not encourage school districts to improve basic skills instruction. 

'I'o some extent they will be discouraged from doing so, because, ultimately, the 

penalty can be transferred to the students through a so-called local diploma. In 

effect, each local diploma we award will be a certificate which attests that we 

were unable to provide its holder with a thorough or an efficient education --­

Indeed, the local diploma concept will indicate that we were unable to provide 

even a minimal education. 

I am, however, even more concerned regarding the effect the provision 

will have on the accessibility of higher education to urban, disadvantaged, and 

handicapped students in the State. As you know, the greatest concentration of 

basic skills deficiencies is among urban students. It is likely, under the 

proposed plan that urban districts would be forced to award large numbers of 

local diplomas if they are permitted to do so. Not only will the urban and 
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educationally handicapped students who receive these diplomas be denied equal 

opportunity for higher education, but they will also be stigm3.tized with a 

"second-class" diploma -- a stigma which is, in fact, deserved by the education 

system, not by the students. 

I believe that it is our obligation to define the ;ninimum requirements 

for attainment of a legitimate high school diploma. We should expect, in the 

spirit of "T & E,11 that every student will be adequately prepared to meet those 

requirements since they are, indeed, minimal. Other states ·nave adopted such an 

approach and have experienced success. In my testimony befon:~ the Senate Education 

Committee, I described the Duval County School System in Florida, which was one of 

the first to adopt high school graduation standards without t:~e loophole of a 

substandard diploma. I was informed by the Director of the D°.lval Assessment Program 

that only 52% of the students passed the test when it was first administered 

several years ago. Last year 97% of the students passed. 

It is possible, I believe, to develop a system of education which will 

provide nearly all students with minimum academic competencie.s, and we should 

neither expect nor accept anything less. However, it will ta:-ce time to accomplish 

this goal. Our colleges and universities will continue to have a corrunitment to 

assist those in need of remediation. Nonetheless, I assure you of our intention 

to gradually disengage our institutions from major involvement in basic skills 

instruction. We have taken steps in recent months to plan such disengagement. 

As you know, I have over the past year pressed for more rigorous standards for 

certifying new teachers so that ten and twenty years from now we are not faced 

with the same problems which face us now. In addition, the D1~partment of Higher 

Education has initiated several programs, of articulation betw1?en high schools 

and colleges, including project step-up right here in Trenton. In this program, the 

faculty of Trenton State College is working closely with faculty of the Trenton 

Public Schools to improve the basic skills of college-bound, urban students. I 

anticipate that this effort will provide one model which can be applied in other 

areas of the State. 

The Senate Education Corrunittee has before it a bill to charge the 

Education Coordinating Council of the Boards of Education and Higher Education 

with the responsibility to develop joint schools and college 1?fforts to 

strengthen education at all levels. Efforts to identify thes1? are already underway. 

In the meanwhile, we do have data which show that, while college-bound 

students are graduating from high school with basic skills d1?ficiencies, and may 

continue to do so for several years, our colleges have been able to remediate their 

problems very effectively during the freshman year. A study conducted last year 

at Brookdale Community College revealed, among other findings, that those students 

who successfully completed the college's remedial reading and writing courses 

passed 70% of their courses in the freshman year. By the way, that is not good 

enough. Students who did not succeed in completing the remed:Lal courses passed 

only 12% of their freshman courses. 

A study completed at Stockton State College yielded analogous results. 

Two years ago, 350 freshmen entering Stockton demonstrated sk:Lll deficiencies. 

However, 84% of these students were successful in completing the remedial program, 

and these students were able to maintain a C+ average in the ::reshman year. 16% 

of the students did not pass the remedial program and were di:3missed from the college. 

The success of the educational opportunity fund proqram in New Jersey 

represents another example which underscores the need to provide disadvantaged 
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students with access to higher education. Our EOF program acconm1od0tc,s 11,(hh) tn 

12,000 students who can generally be categorized as economically and educationally 

disadvantaged. Yet, given the remedial and counsling services of the EOF Proqram, 

almost half of these students have been able to graduate and 10% have graduated 

with honors. These are students who came to the colleqe with literally a zero 

chance of being successful. 

I present these exapmles to dramatize the need to provide access to 

higher education even for those students whom our education system has not 

prepared adequately. 

I stress these efforts to make additional points, first, students who 

are motivated properly can overcome skills deficiencies at relatively low costs 

and over relatively short periods of time. The successful efforts in this area 

by several of our colleges demonstrates what can be done if the need to do so is 

apparent and compelling. Secondly, there are large numbers of so-called skills 

deficient students who can be helped at a relatively small investment. If we were 

to block our students from the collegiate system where they can be helped effectively, 

we would be potentially burdening our society with still greater costs for 

unemployment and welfare. 

Yet I believe that our colleges should give clear signals to the high 

school community about our expectations. I plan to ask the Basic Skills Council 

of the Board of Higher Education to convene a group of faculty and admissions staff 

from our colleges to discuss and explore the establishment of minimum requirements 

for high school study, English, history, mathematics, foreign language and science 

as prerequisites for admission to college, to be effective concurrently with the 

effective date of the high school graduation requirement. 

Further, I would propose that the State's Board of Education adopt these 

requirements of all high school students. 

Whatever we do, I hope that your Committee will avoid the temptation to 

be overly prescriptive. 

The principle of local autonomy is important, but that L·elates to how the: 

process of education should proceed, and not what it is students should know to 

qualify for graduation. A single statowide standard for high schol graduation is 

likely to be defined at a relatively low level. Do not provide for local option for 

a still lower level. 

Finally, please recognize that children learn at different rates and 

mature at different chronological ages. While holding all students to a required 

level of attainment for recognition for graduation, we must provide within our system 

individual variability. We must also provide for eqivalcnces for drop-outs and 

poor performers who later in life are able to meet required standards and seek 

to continue their education. 

While adhering to high standards, we should open doors to learning,not 

close them, especially if the open doors lead to demonstrably successful results 

at a relatively low cost. 

I believe that efforts of this sort, combined with a firm set of minimum 

standards for high school graduation, will produce the results we seek. But I do not 

believe that we can afford a major retreat from the principles of "T & E" nor those 

of equal access to higher education. Therefore, I strongly urge th:l.t you delete that 

section of S-1154 which provides for the awarding of local diplomas. 

Thank you for your generous attention. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Thank you, Chancellor. Assemblyman Rand. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN RAND: I would like to ask one question, Chancellor. You 

are afraid that we are going to give worthless diplomas. There were some people 

today who said they were given worthless diplomas. 

And, I am just tryng to correlate this. That is why we are here today, 

because some of us - at least Senator Feldman believes that we are - believe we arc 

giving worthless diplomas. 

I would like to ask you one more question. If this bill is passed, I 

would bope there would be a development of testing which might eliminate the 

duplication of testing both in the high school and the entrance in the college. 

It seems to me there certainly should be a rapport between the Department of 

Education and certainly your department where we can have om:~ unit, and one test 

which would certainly assess skills. 

CHANCELLOR HOLLANDER: I think that is possible. Our testing program 

was developed to determine which students should be given remedial program 

assignments, which is really a test to help the individual s-c.udents. The overall 

results of the test, of course, leave some concern about the overall level of 

preparation. But, our test was for the purpose of helping our guidance people 

assign students to courses. If every high school graduate meets those skills 

of a high school graduation standard, then there would be no need to test for what 

students already have. 

ASSEMBLYMAN RAND: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Assemblyman Martin. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Chancellor, you made mention of Duval County, I 

believe, down in Florida. I am not too knowledgeable about Duval County, but 

my question is this: This morning when the Commissioner of Education was testifying, 

he indicated, too, that in Florida there was some evidence that the type of approach 

that Senator Feldman is proposing with respect to testing has shown some results, 

positive results. 

Do you have any real evidence besides the statement here that you contacted 

them --- I don't know how you contacted them, whether it Wa1'; in writing or by phone -

whether their statement that there has been improvement - I believe they moved up 

from 52% to 97% - and whether that can really be strictly attributable to a basic 

skills or minimum standards of testing? 

CHANCELLOR HOLLANDER: I can't answer the question. I don't know. Florida 

has done several things recently. They have moved to a form of competency-based 

teacher certification, about five or six years ago. That mcLY have had some 

impact. It may be the standard itself that may have had somE· impact. I have 

spoken to some parents of Florida children who tell me that they spend some period 

of time in school studying stoward the test, which means in Effect they review the 

material that is tested for. I don't think that is a bad idea, by the way, if 

the test is for grammar and they get instructed in grammar to pass the test, they 

learn grarrunar. But, I think there are some complaints that perhaps there is too 

much teaching to the test. But, overall, the results have come from this combination 

of factors, so I can't say as a professional what the specific reasons were for 

that improvement. I think we would have to get a lot more information from the 

Florida school system. I cite it because it is a good example. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: A convenience example. Is it also conceivable that 

perhaps an influx of the different quality of student from other areas in the 

country in the intervening period might have had some bearing on the results? 

BA 



CHANCELLOR HOLLANDER: I can 8 t speak hn t hPm. I don 'l krn-''". 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: I didn't think that you crn11ld. It Wi-1S .i tl)tt11ilt111~;, 

or gratuitous statement, I should say; maybe both. 

Just a few moments ago, I don't know if yon hc,ard Dr. Schwebel, he made 

a six-point attack on the bill. H~ opposes it. He says it is thew rang bill at 

this time, and basically what he was stating was that instead of testing, setting 

of minimum standards, what really ought to be done is to utilize new programs that 

are available that have been tried both in this country and abroad. My question 

to you is, does Dr. Schwebel make a valid point, or perhaps one that is overriding 

in terms of this bill? 

CHANCELLOR HOLLANDER: Well, I was very careful in my testimony to teilk 

to t.his as a partial solution to the problem. I think the est.ab1ishrnent of a t0st 

and nothing more would be as hurtful as it is helpful. I think the purpose- of the' 

test is not to penalize students for not being successful, but to identify a 

measure which tells all of us in education how successful we are. I think the 

development of a high school graduation standard must also be accompanied by a 

whole series of changes within our system. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Including new programs? 

CHANCELLOR HOLLANDER: Well, I don't know which new programs he was 

referring to. I mean, I remember the more effective schools programs in New York 

City about twenty years ago and what great promise that held. The only promise it 

delivered was a more intensive, better staffing ratios, smaller classes, which 

didn't seem to do very much, and higher salaries and so forth. The students didn't 

seem to recognize the effectiveness of the more effective schools program. So, 

I think it is a question of what the program is, but the establishment of a standard 

has two, I think, salutary benefits. One, it defines expectation, so everybody 

knows what those expectations are. That is terribly important. Students know what 

is expected of them, and teachers know what level they are trying to prepare students 

for. Secondly, it tests how well we do along the way. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Chancellor, don't we already know, from the test 

results that have been taken over the years, that performance is not what we want. 

Don't we already know that? 

CHANCELLOR HOLLANDER: That is correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAR'rIN: Okay, we don't have to do additional testing to 

determine that. The question is, how do we deal with the problem, and I refer 

again to Dr. Schwebel's comments and what he basically is saying, we are looking 

in the wrong direction. What we are looking at is the problem and not the solutions. 

And, one of the points that he made was that perhaps what we ought to be doing is 

improving the communication skills, and he places some blame in his presentation 

here on the fact that we do not, particularly on the college level, require students 

to write an essay-type answer, that they are marking "x's" or marking a sheet for 

computer processing, rather than expressing themselves. And, my question is, what 

are we going to do about that~ How does this bill address that problem? 

CHANCELLOR HOLLANDER: This bill doesn't deal with the college level, 

but I can tell you that our Basic Skills Council - and the Director of that is 

sitting in the back - said at one point in our discussions that if we did nothing 

more than require term papers and essays on college courses, we would have a 

forward leap quality of writing on the part of our students, and we have been even 

talking about working with our faculties to define that requirement. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Isn't that something that can be done right now with 

no legislation? 

CHANCELLOR HOLLANDER: Let me suggest that there are several things we 

are all working on. First, in the training of teachers, in the certification of 

teachers, there is the Newman Commission - and we call it thH Newman Commission 

because of Assemblyman Newman's leadership, and of course, if they come up with 

good recommendations, he can get the credit~ if not, he will get the blame - and 

they are taking a look, from what I have seen of their delibE~rations from my 

participation on the licensing requirement for teachers, on the ways in which we 

can improve the quality of teacher training in our colleges, and on the question 

of in-service education, all of which in my judgement needs aignificant reform. 

Secondly, our Department has spent two or three days in full day seminars 

with our senior staff looking at the basic skills issue of what we can do in terms 

of substantive program changes, or to help deal with the problem. When we complflte 

our work, we will be meeting with the joint group from the DE!partment of Education 

and we are going to try to lay out a short term and a long tE!rm strategy programatically 

to deal with the question. That is the second thing that can be done. 

Third, I talked about requirements for entry into college, and the purpose 

of that would be to press our students in the high schools to take the courses 

which develop their reading and writing skills, rather than E:ome of the others 

that are available in the curriculfun and increase the commitment of high school 

resources to those kinds of courses. 

The fourth thing we need to do is to have yardsticks along the way for 

our children to make sure they are learning at the levels they should be learning 

and to tell them what our expectations are of them to graduate from high school. 

I don't think we do a service to our students if we give them a piece of paper which 

simply measures attendance. I think if we tell our students that this is what 

we expect you to do when you graduate from high school, our students will rise to 

our expectations, and our teachers will help assure that that happens. But, in the 

absence of that standard, a lot of fluff gets into our curriculum. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Chancellor, one of the reasons Dean Schwebel gave 

for opposing this bill, his sixth reason, was that it gets tcugh with the J:ids, and 

doesn't really address the problem. It is punishing the children, and not really 

dealing with the problem. 

CHANCELLOR HOLLANDER: It would be punishing children if you establish 

that requirement next year. It would not be punishing our children, in my 

judgement, if that requirement said, number of years in the future, and at the 

same time we were able to measure student progress at intermediate points. I 

think it would be putting pressure on our young people, and it would also be 

putting pressure on our school systems, because our school boards would be clearly 

accountable to the public for the results of their high school system. That is where 

the pressure would be. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: You are assuming, I take it,that the school boards 

and the administrators will institute programs early on before the testing is done. 

Is that what you are saying? 

CHANCELLOR HOLLANDER: I think our Department of Education would want to 

see that that would happen, and if they don't, or put another way, I think on an 

experimental basis it might be useful to begin giving those tests, even though you 

don't use them in the next several years. I think the public is going to say to 

their school boards that they select, or to the elected officials who select school 

1 OA 



board members, something about resource allocation to the? schools, and the performanCE' 

of the schools if the schools don't provide thl~ kinds of proqram::> Lhat wiJ1 

qraduate students. 

J fu] ly <i<JrP.c w.ith you, 7\ssc'mblyrnan M<ni.·i11, I li,1l :~imply S<'tl inq ,\ ::•l .rnti.n-rl 

and t<>st inq people wi Lhout: any chanqc anywlH'I (' <"l :q·, in t.h<' :1yt,~t.0rn i /-\11 1 l q()i nq to 

accornpli::~h what il: is you seek to accornpJish. I dcin'L think without th.ll: ::-;L111dtnd 

the other thincF; will be effective. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Don't we run a risk, Chancellor, of compounding 

frustrations that exist in our society by constantly publishing poor scores 

without, at the same time,doing something concrete about improving the quality 

of education and the ability of the students to measure up to the standards we set. 

CHANCELLOR HOLLANDER: Yes. On the other hand, if you don't know what 

the question is, it is awfully hard to find the answer. For example, I would argue 

that until we gave our basic skills test which was not designed for that purpose, 

we ourselves didn't know the dimensions of the problem~ we only suspected what 

they w0re. Now we understand the full potential of the problem. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Just one further thing. I would ljke to make 

a comment, Mr. Chairman. I have a problem reconciling the differences of opinion 

on this bill between those who are in a position of responsibility to carry out: 

educational policy in this State, and the testimony of a gentleman from Rutgers 

who apparently has very high credentials, having served as the Dean of the Graduate 

School of Education, who presented us a few moments ago with a very detailed set 

of criticisms of the bill, and who believes, as he stated here, that this bill is 

looking at the wrong end of the problem, in terms of proposing a solution or 

solutions. And, I am a little frustrated at this point in terms of how we as a 

State are going to meet the problem which concerns not only Senator Feldman, but 

I guess all of us, and all the citizens of the State. I am very fearful that what 

is being proposed here may very well - instead of helping to solve the problem -

obviscate and confuse and further frustrate the citizens of this State and perhaps 

cost an awful lot of money to do that rather than to solve the problem. 

I wonder if you would care to comment on that. 

CHANCELLOR HOLL..:n.NDER: Well, I think honest people can differ, but I am 

not sure the differences are that clearly defined. I think we all agre~ that there 

needs to be some intrinsic change in our systems. Where we perhaps disagree is 

whether this particular requirement will be helpful in five years or ten years 

from now when it is implemented. 

I think it will be, because I think that dealing with the issue of the 

effectiveness of our educational system requires that we know and understand 

first what we expect~ second, that our students, our young people and our teachers 

know and understand what we expect, and that we hold to a standard which says, if 

you don't reach those expectations, you don't get the recognition that you have 

reached those expectations. That is what this bill does. It is one small piece 

of a need to deal with a larger situation. 

I have to say that I am much more supportive, having looked at what our 

colleges have been able to do in the area of remediation. Now, it is true that the 

students who come to us in higher education are self-selecting. They want to succE~ed, 

otherwise, they would not register for college. But, the ability of our colleges -

or at least some of our colleges, and the evidence is hard - to brinq thos0 students 

up to grade level suggests that it is not a problem that can't be dealt with with 
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reasonable effort at the local district level. I think there needs to be, I guess, 

some public pressure for that effort to be made - to be very candid for it to 

be done well. That means resources, and programs and questions being asked by 

school boards about childrens' performance. I think this bill helps get those 

questions defined. But, the very fundamental issue that the bill deals with is 

the question of whether one ought to recognize somebody has accomplished something 

when in fact they have not, or whether one should frustrate an individual by 

saying you have been successful, when that person has not been successful and does 

not understand why, when they get out into the real world, they are not able to 

function effectively. That is also very frustrating. So, yes, there is going to 

be a frustration at some point. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Mr. Chairman, I would like to indulge you for one 

more moment. Isn't there another risk here of this testing. A student comes home -

and this has happened personally with some of my children - and you ask them what 

sort of test they had today, and I am referring to this kind of a test, and they 

say it was a farce, a joke~ it turns them off. Don't we run that risk too? 

CHANCELLOR HOLLANDER: If every student were to say that, we would have 

a problem. Well, I guess students say that. You know, I heaj~d that when we gave 

our basic skills test, that the students at one particular institution were joking 

about what an easy test it was, and when we got the scores, we found out that they 

may have thought it was easy, but it wasn't as easy as they thought it was. Sure, 

that is---

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: I am talking about a real turnover. 

CHANCELLOR HOLLANDER: If the question you are getting at is whether or 

not students who now perform well above our expectations will drop their performance 

down to that level--- I just don't think that is going to ha.ppen for a number of 

reasons. One, these students are highly motivated to go to a selective institution. 

They are going to be taking tests like the Scholastic Aptituc:5.e Test, which has some 

value, but which also has some weaknesses, and they will be taking Achievement Tests, 

and taking Challenge Examinations, CLEP, which will give them college credit for 

what they did in high school. There are all types of other tests available to such 

students, which will_rnotivate them to perform at their peak. I mean these highly 

motivated young people do stretch and their scores reflect it. 

This standard will increase the motivation for lar9er numbers of students. 

I think it will serve the same function for the preponderate! majority of students, 

such as a student that wants to go to a very selective institution will have the 

motivation for performance. 

I also think that with the right kind of environrner..t and stimulation 

and understanding that people will care about what they do. Our young people will 

rise to our expectations. On the other hand, if we say it re!ally doesn't matter, 

they are all going to get high school diplomas anyway• they a.11 get 11 seniori tis 11 or 

the "senioritis" spreads throughout the curriculum. "Senioritis" is a disease where 

students have already been admitted to college, and they stop working. You know, 

they feel it doesn't really matter any more. If we convey tt.at impression - and I 

think we do now - the children will be as cynical as we are. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Thank you very much. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Thank you, Dr. Hollander. Mr. Walter Chesner, 

and Dr. Glenn Grube, New Jersey Association of Secondary School Principals. 
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W A L T E R w. C H E S N E R: Mr. Cha]rman, members of the Assembly 

Education Committee, I want to thank you vc~ry 11n1ch for providinq 1u~ w:i th thi ~' 

opportunity to shate our viE'ws with you on this is~tl("'. 

Our association wishes to go on record as bei11q oppo:'('d t:o Scnat (' Hi l I 

lJ54 in its present form. We are pleaPcd that sev0ral positive chanqcs have been 

made in the proposed legislation since it was first introduced, however, the bill 

as written still has some weaknesses which need to be corrected. 

Our major objections are centered around the statewide assessment tests 

and statewide levels of proficiency in reading, writing and computational skills, 

and the idea of issuing different diplomas. 

Our A:3sociation accepts the concept that the public has a right to expect 

the students to be able to demonstrate competence in basic skill areas as required 

by T & E, the Chrtpter 212 li:iws of 1975. We are convinced, however, that statewide 

assessment tests and levels of proficiency will not resolve the problems for 

students who are unable to retain information and thus cannot apply it at a 

satisfactory level in the world of work or in pursuit of higher education. These 

students might study hard for tests, but if they cannot retain the information 

for more than a few days, they will fail anyway and will give up entirely and drop 

out of school. We do not see statewide tests solving learning problems. If anything, 

we believe the problems will be magnified. 

For other students, meeting the minimum standard will become the goal, 

we are afraid. In these cases, these students will be cheating themselves. Let's 

face it, highly motivated and average or better students do not need a minimum 

standards test. They will pass it. Students with poor motivation, poor attitudes 

towards school, and poor self image are the ones for whom the test would really be 

designed for the most part. Just as they do poorly on MBS tests adn1inistered by 

the State, so they will do poorly on another test, the assessment test for graduation 

requirements, and again they will face another failure. 

We strongly believe that the evaluation procedures developed in the T & E 

law to provide for "continuous and comprehensive review of pupil progress toward 

district and school goals and program objectives" is the best approach to improving 

skill development and preparing students throughout their years in school. It seems 

to us that a minimal standards program in grades 9 through 12 may already be too 

late for many students whose basic skills are at a minimal level upon entrance to 

grade nine, whereas the T & E approach provides for continuous assessment, program 

adjustment and remediation for students failing to meet pupil minimum proficiency 

levels established by the district board of education. 

If new legislation is necessary we recommend that it build upon what is 

already provided for in T & E. We believe that the bill should require that local 

boards of education adopt proficiency levels and standards for graduation which are 

consistent with local goals and objectives and the proven ability of their students 

as demonstrated by their performance on the MBS tests, and that the standards for 

each district be approved by the Corrnnissioner of Education. 

We also recorrurunend that such legislation require that assessment tests 

in reading, writing, and computational skills be developed by the Commissioner of 

Education~ and that they be made available to Boards of Education who may wish 

to use them for assessing student performance together with other locally designed 

or selected measuring instruments. 

The other change that we recommend be made in S-1154 is that only one 

diploma be issued, and that it continue to be the local diploma which has served 



the purpose well for so many years. However, we would recomnend that the bill 

require that each diploma be accompanied by a copy of the students transcript of 

courses taken by exact title, and grades achieved together with an explanation 

of the grading system so that employers or school and colleg·e officials can make 

a judgement as to what should be legitimately expected from the applicant. We 

feel that issuance of different diplomas would automatically relegate students 

receiving the local diploma to the ranks of the unemployed. They are likely to 

be considered total failures and are not likely to be given ~ chance. 

If these adjustments are made in S-1154, we feel t:l.at students stand to 

gain. We believe that the disadvantages of a statewide minimum standard are many, 

and that higher and more realistic aspiration will be set for students in their 

own schools and communities with local control over standard,s than with a statewide 

program. 

Thank you for considering our recommendations. Dr. Glenn Grube, 

Principal of Bergenfield High School will give the practitioner's point of view 

on our testimony. 

D R. G L E N N G R U B E: Assemblyman Martin a few minutes ago had said 

that he was confused about the difference in testimony, so perhaps the practitioner's 

viewpoint - this is my twentieth year in education, fourteenth year as an administrator, 

eleventh year as a high school principal. I represent really the 11 some 11 that were 

referred to this morning by the State Board of Education speaker, Linda Albert. 

During the Senate hearings on Bill 1154, three members of the New Jersey 

Association of Secondary School Principals and Supervisors spoke directly against 

graduation tests which would stand as a single barrier to a student's graduation 

and receipt of a diploma. We also spoke against a proliferation of different kinds 

of diplomas and certificates that might be awarded upon completion of four years 

of high school. We commend the change in the legislation wh:_ch eliminated the 

concept of multiple state diplomas and certificates. However, we must continue to 

speak against a competency examination which would be a sole barrier to a student's 

graduation. 

The New York's Regents examination has not been successful in demanding 

quality education for all children. The Florida competency tests have been a farce. 

Oregon has had a disasterous affair with state testing for graduation, and Delaware 

wisely viewed what was happening in other states, and abandoned their state mandated 

program before it got aoff the ground. 

The State Board of Education in New Jersey wisely E~liminated, a number 

of years ago, the multiple type diploma in this State and followed up in the early 

seventies with an equalization of credits for all approved subjects based on timing 

class.· In essence, they eliminated any stigma of minor changes or less than 

academic programs. 

The New Jersey Association of Secondary School Principals and Supervisors, 

and all other educational associations and personnel in thi.s State certainly 

agree that change has been needed. We have not assumed, however, that the overall 

quality of public education in New Jersey has been in a statE· of decline, but have 

assumed that the problem has been in a change in the demands of the schools from 

increasing rates of graduation to an emphasis upon raising the levels of achievement 

especially in the basic skills area. 

Working toward the improvement of learning require~• a far more subtle and 

complex strategy than merely implementing statewide high school graduation tests. 
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It means maintaining a close proximity between the classroom and the locusts of 

decision making between parents and policy makers. In some it means local control 

over curriculum and standards of achievement and it means a state strategy to 

protect, and enhances the ability of local communities to shape their own educational 

policies. Indeed, it is in the interest of state government to promote and support 

good management locally - for state government cannot effeiciently and effectively 

manage the public schools. Schools are fragile institutions. They require commitment 

and dedication. Education remains far more an art than a science, and there is no 

single instructional prescription that can be shown to be best for all students. 

When I spoke to the Senate Committee, I reminded Senator Feldman from 

Berqen County that he had accepted an invitation to visit the Bergenfield High 

School as part of a legislative day in the spring of 1977. Assemblyman Martin, on 

that very same day, you went up to northern valley, and one of the schools in that 

district. We set out to have them recognize that the Bergenfield staff was working 

very hard to create the finest possible envirorunent for our students. We hoped that 

he would be able to grasp the flavor of the kind of atmosphere which we believe 

contributes to the maturing of our young people into solid community leaders. I 

quote from a letter sent to me by Senator Feldman, "clean, well-maintained, a decorum 

in the halls, a program meeting the needs of many students, happy faces on those I 

met. My image of Bergenfield High School was turned 180 degrees." May we suggest 

that the kinds of achievement, the meeting of the needs of all students, and the 

quality of graduates that you hope to legislate already exists in many fine schools 

in this State. 

Transcripts of student work, not merely the diploma, give evidence of this 

achievement. Mr. Chesner, a few minutes ago, alluded to the fact that you can 

require or ask for a transcript if you want to find out what the student has 

achieved. The pressures of the State stest will only serve to do what the caps 

have done, to legialate mediocrity, and a loss of quality for many of these fine 

schools. 

In the record, February 2, 1979, Senator Feldman in an article on 

"Spare the CAPS" and I quote him, "What I cannot accept is that the only way to 

equalize school expenditures is to force all districts down. to reduce quality 

programs to make the average the ideal. If equalization involves restraint, it 

must also involve increased efforts to raise the quality of all districts. We 

must act to stop the erosion of quality programs in out public schools." That is 

"What he had to say about caps. I believe that the competency exam, we can say the 

same thing about. 

Important curricular and extra-curricular programs will be eliminatt=!d 

in order to finance teaching to the test, administrators will be overwhelmed with 

arguments as to who gets a state or local diploma, which will still have different 

meanings for each district. Inner city youth will definitely be turned off by 

the test requirement and drop-outs will more than likely increase. It will be 

difficult for administrators in quality schools to convince marginal students 

who passed the "ninth grade competency test" that there is much more to earning 

a diploma, more to becoming an educated person than merely passing the test. 

Furthermore, good schools exist because teachers are accountable~ for 

quality instruction. It is the administrators, the principals, the directors and 

the department chairperson's job to be certain that a tc_~acher is usi nq the lx•:-;t 

possible classroom techniques. Is creating an environment conducive to lc'dJ ninq, 

and is working hard toward insuring that evf:-ry student h<'ls the opport.uni ty and .i::; 



encouraged to learn to his or her fullest potential. A graduation test will only 

encourage poor or less than able teachers and administrators to strengthen their 

holds on classrooms and schools, because their success will be determined not by 

broad aspects of learning or happy faces or meeting needs, but by the testing 

results regardless of h~w these results were obtained, with little concern about 

the environment which produced these in-roads results, and with lessened ability 

of the administrator to challenge poor practices as the test results might support 

a belief that good teaching had occurred. 

The more important factors in teaching are the perE1onal and environmental 

in combination with pupil growth that is measured by a variety of factors. To allow 

one factor - that of testing - to become critical to evaluation, graduation, and 

the type of diploma received will defeat the whole process of quality education -

that of working with and developing the many diversified potE?ntials in every child. 

Last month, on two separate occasions, we had visitors in our school 

in connection with the New Jersey Task Force of Violence and Vandalism. The coverage 

given us by CBS News, Channel 2, was very positive, but for me, a greater encouragement 

came from Task Force members who upon getting ready to leave in the afternoon after 

a full day with us stated,"You should be envious of your school. You seem to be 

doing a fine job for many students." 

At Bergenfield, we are working hard and most of our non-classified students 

can easily meet the ninth grade competency level at graduation. The few who cannot 

have received excellent remediation through a fine compensatory education program 

instituted under the T & E process. Many of these students have developed special 

talents which will enable them to lead successful lives. They have all matured 

during their four years with us, and will be better citizens because of their 

attendance at Bergenfield High School. I am afraid that a competency test will 

become a maximum - not by the desire of the local school, but because financial 

assistance will be further channeled away from the model and achieving schools 

because they are doing a good job and need less help. 

I thank you for listening to those of us who are providing quality 

educational experiences for our students. We strongly oppose· the legislation of 

Senate Bill Number 1154, and recommend that it must remain the Commissioner's job 

to make recommendations to the State Board of Education regarding graduation 

requirements. The Adolescent Study Commission, the Graduation Requirements Committee 

of which I was a member, and the many review committees! have worked very hard to 

provide solid input upon which the State Board of Education can build. T & E can 

work in New Jersey. There are many models on which success can be patterned, but 

not under the dictates of mandated graduation testing which will only legislate 

mediocrity. You should not believe that you can legislate quality education. You 

can only foster it by supporting and encouraging the very best environment and teaching 

techniques that are available. 

I urge you to seek models, rather than legislating a test. Thank you for 

considering our testimony and recommendations. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Thank you. Let me just say--- I can say an awful 

lot, but we don't have time for that. It is not a question of legislating. You 

say we can accomplish all these things. I love to hear this at these hearings, 

that we can accomplish all these things - you shouldn't legislate them because 

you can do them. Let me just say respectfully to you, you have' had 125 years, and 

you have not done them yet. 
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DR. GRUBE: We are doing them. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: You are doing them now? 

DR. GRUBE: Yes, sir. We have been doing them. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Well, g0t your head c•ut of the sand, bt:>c,ni.s,• \·:li,1l 

you have described here is not what is going on in every school in NE"N Jersey. It 

might be going on in your high school. 

DR. GRUBE: Let's find those models and let's use them, because in many, 

many schools it is going on. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: I know it is. We can't be damned about the othnr 

schools, either. It is not just a school. I can point to several schools that you 

h;:ive described, but I can point out a heck of a lot more where nothing is bc~_i nq dc;ne. 

Now, getting back to you, Mr. Chesner, the kinds of pupils you described 

in your testimony that were not going to do anything, what do you propose we do with 

these kids? I don't have your prepared testimony in front of me, so I am going on 

my memory. You suggested that there are kids that are not doing very well. How 

do you propose to deal with that? 

MR. CHESNER: I think that setting a standard for them is not going to 

hPlp them learn any better. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: What is? 

MR. CHESNER: I think that remediation programs that are in operation, 

caring teachers trying to work with these young people, the programs that are in 

operation in some districts, where they have a complete cooperative program with th~ 

home, the school, and some of the community resources, trying to help young people 

improve their image, trying to help improve what happens when they come into the home, 

trying to provide study situations for them. It is all of those factors that try 

to help. But, some of those youngsters - I have worked with them as a former principal, 

I have worked with our teachers trying to provide remediation for the kids, and for 

some of those youngsters are never going to be able to pass the test per se. 

Now, some of the youngsters were able verbally, by sitting down with their teachers, 

to respond to questions, and be able to achieve a level of proficiency that the 

paper and pencil tests never showed. So, you can do some things, but it is a long 

hard trial. 

The programs at the college, I was going to comment, you have an 

enrollment policy which is a good policy, but with that enrollment policy, you are 

going to always have to provide, as I see it, remedial programs for the young people 

to come in to that particular level, because you never cut off a kid. Students reach 

plateaus, as I saw in working with our people in trying to provide remedial assistance 

to students. They may go along for a year or two, and maybe in reading they might 

make two months of progress, and then all of a sudden they spurt, and you might get 

six months out of the next year's efforts. I don't know that anybody knows the 

answer to why it happens, but it does happen. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: The point I was making, this bill, as it is written, 

provides for those students you are speaking about. It provides the alternative 

means of getting the diplomas, in addition to the two diplomas. It provides that. 

It is in this bill. 

The reason I am questioning you is, you talked so well about the youngsters 

that are gdoing well, and then you defend those who are not, and say they both should 

get the same. Is it fair to the youngster who is doing well to get a diploma, the 

same diploma, with the same meaning in our society, to be granted to the youngster 

that everybody including the superintendent knows didn't deserve it; how do you 
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justify that, particularly when those that get the diploma are of the greater numbers 

than those who get it and don't deserve it. How do you defend insulting the majority 

to satisfy what is hopefully a small minority of the student population? How do you 

justify that? 

MR. CHESNER: I don't think that the kids in the high schools are 

insulted by the fact that they all get the same kind of diploma. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Did you ever ask them? 

MR. CHESNER: Not recently, no. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Try it some time. 

MR. CHESNER: Okay. But, in terms of the kids who are not able to 

progress, the transcript, we still feel, is a better answer than the diploma. The 

transcript points out the differences. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Let me ask you that question while you are on the 

subject. If I am an employer and I call the school district, and I ask for a 

transcript of a former school student, are you going to give it to me? 

MR. CHESNER: If you get the student to give you a release, we will send 

it to you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: You will send it to me? Not to the student? 

MR. CHESNER: If the student gives us the release to do so, we will do 

it, and if he doesn't give us the release, you don't hire him. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Thank you, gentlemen. The next witness is 

Ms. Bebe Sellers, Acting Superintendent of East Orange Schools. Is she here? 

B E B E S E L L E R S: Mr. Chairman, members of the Assembly Education Committee, 

I am Mrs. Bebe Sellers, Acting Superintendent of Schools in East Orange. Also, 

I am privileged to have two students with me, about which this bill is concerned, 

Miss Debbie Washington, and Mr. Tommy Pierce. This is my second attempt to testify 

before you on my concerns and the concerns of East Orange students in reference to 

Senate Bill 1154. My first attempt was aborted by snow~ however, the 96 children 

Who came with me were privileged to address their concerns to the Honorable Matthew 

Feldman. 

It can be assumed that: Local control of educational programs has been 

an American tradition~ it can also be assumed that, a state assessment as described 

on page one, Section one of this bill could become an evaluation program without 

any explicit intention of becoming so. 

Permit me to define at this time the difference between assessment and 

evaluation. A. J. Buhl defines the basic function of an assessment as an instrument 

designed to describe what presently exists without passing jud9ement. On the other 

hand, an evaluation determines merit or worth and so requires a value system. 

Senate Bill Number 1154 providing for high school graduation standards 

as described in Section One, lines a-d, appears to propose to ~;upplant our current 

New Jersey Minimum Basic Skills Assessment with a New Jersey Minimum Basic Skills 

Graduation Evaluation. Section One, paragraph e,appears to be in opposition to the 

current trend of mainstreaming children protected by Chapter 46 of Title 18A of the 

New Jersey Statutes. In my opinion, this bill,as proposed, infers that our State 

is now ready to impose standards of merit, worth and even values on our students. 

Assessments when properly utilized have three very good applications: The 

facilitation of school goal development~ two, a description of student achievement 

and some explanation of positive or negative results: and, three, a determination 

of the competency level of a given student prior to making a decision such as promotion 

or graduation. 
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Performance standards vary as freely as do the educational philosophies 

from which they are born. The requirement of the inclusion at the district level 

of performance standards in state mandated T & E educational objectives appears to 

be meaningless or of little consequence with the mandate of graduation standards as 

proposed in this bill on page one, section two. 

As I attend workshops and conferences on program assessment, I am constantly 

c"xposed to the concept that there must exist a great degree of congruence between 

what is assessed and that which is taught. Satisfactory performance on the statewide 

assessment test as provided for in Section lb of this act would indeed imply, if not 

require, the school districts redesign their curricula to insure "teaching what is 

tested"-that is, if we are to keep current with the contemporary trends of prngram 

assessment, should this become the case, the state has then removed control of 

educational programming from the local school district. Perhaps the school curricula 

will reflect only those standards which are a part of the assessment program - keeping 

in mind that these tests measure the minimum basic skills. 

Section three of the original bill has been radically modified to its 

present state. I am grateful for this consideration; however, I am still left 

with some concern. Section three, lines one through seven on page two of Senate 

Bill 1154 requires the local school district to provide remedial instruction, which 

could result in large expenditures at the local level. While we agree with the 

need for remedial programming, I am left with the concern of financial support for 

such services. I wish to ask at this time, will the sponsors of this bill support 

this law with additional legislation which will insure financial support to those 

areas where academic performance is unacceptable under current New Jersey Basic 

Skills Assessment Tests. I wish to refer you to Exhibit A attached hereto, which 

shows the districts where such support will be needed. Those districts are: Pleasantville, 

Englewood, Camden, East Orange, Essex Vocational, Irvington, Newark, Orange, Hobok~n, 

Jersey City, Trenton, New Brunswick, Asbury Park, Lakewood, Passaic, Paterson, and 

Elizabeth. 

I am totally confused by Section Three, lines eight through thirteen on 

page two. Are we indeed inviting students to simply leave our schools? Once again 

I refer you to Exhibit A and the Percent Minority Dropout, to identify not only the 

districts, but a specific group of people who will in all probability be most affected 

if financial support is not provided as previously mentioned. 

On page three, section four, Senate Bill 1154 proposed two alternatives 

to receive diplomas: One, a diploma awarded to those who meet State and local 

graduation requirements; two, a diploma may be awarded to those not meeting state 

and local requi n"ments but having been remediated, huwevc•r, th0y amny r0c0i V(~ ri dip Lorna 

which will not have the endorsement of the State. 

If the State of New Jersey fails to provide the financial support rc,quired 

for effective remediation, the students failing the state standards may - according 

to Section three, lines eight through eleven, page two - be eligible for assessment 

of proficiency at the local level, utilizing techniques other than the State assessment 

but techniques that have been approved by the Commissioner as fulfilling state and 

local graduation requirements, and then conceptually be eligible for the state approved 

diploma. It appears to me, then, that all students are eligible for the state approved 

diploma. He or she may or may not be remediated if local standards are passed 

according to other instruments approved by the Commissioner. A double standard, 

I dare say, perhaps designed for those districts outlined in Exhibit A which may 

not be able to support a remediation program to insure acceptable state assessment 



performance. Please, we do believe that effective implemented graduation requirements 

could provide a student with a meaningful diploma. 

As an educator, especially in this international year of the child, I 

must formally protest the stamping of children in any manner that could terminate 

their academic progress at the average age of seventeen years. While the presenters 

through their modification of the original bill appear to be reaching out for a 

meaningful educational law, it is vital that no child in the State of New Jersey be 

left with a meaningless piece of paper and a shattered self-image with little hope 

of achieving the good life - as is every American's dream. 

I respectfully ask you to explore the following co~'.1.siderations: How 

much of this bill will have a direct negative impact upon urban school districts? 

How much of this bill will have a direct negative impact on the state's minority 

students? Are we seeing birth of a new American tradition - the sanctioning and 

certifying of mediocrity? 

I refer you to Exhibit A. As these data reflect, urban children are 

known to perform poorly on tests - and as indicated by these data, specifically the 

New Jersey Minimum Basic Skills Assessment. It is also a fact that with the exception 

of Toms River, large school districts have a very large minority population. These 

data included in Exhibit A are taken from the New Jersey Minimum Basic Skills Test 

given to eleventh graders in 1978 in the areas of reading and mathematics. The 

districts selected for this presentation are those in which the mean performance on 

either the reading or mathematics test falls below the sixty-five percentile. These 

districts are also described in terms of total district public school population, 

percent minority students, and percent minority dropouts. Onj::ehalf of urban children 

throughout the State of New Jersey, especially the minority childreQ, I respectfully 

ask that you insist upon more clarity regarding the last thrE!e issues I have raised. 

To assist in further deliberation of Senate Bill 1154, I refer you to 

Exhibit B, "Defining Minimum Competency Standards." Since 1976 the New York Board 

of Regents has been developing this concept~ it is still undE!r development as is 

shown in Exhibit c. 
The students from East Orange wish to express their concerns through 

this statement and Exhibit D. Please consider the sentiments expressed by the youth 

of East Orange to Senator Feldman. I refer you to Exhibit D a.nd the unidentified student 

who remarked ..• "If remediation starts in the ninth grade, it seems to me you've 

already got the problem. The thing to do is start before the ninth grade That 

means the teachers will have to face a problem as it appears. It's wrong to 

penalize someone at the later stage." 

We acknowledge the importance of this bill~ we ask you to acknowledge the 

true impact it can have on the youth of New Jersey everywhere. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN GARVIN: I would just like to say how proud I am. You 

have made a beautiful presentation. Members of the Committee, Mrs. Sellers represents 

my home district of East Orange, one of three. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Mr. Martin. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: The only question I have is, I presume you have 

communicated your opposition of this bill to the sponsor of the bill, to Senator 

Feldman~ is that correct? 

MS. SELLERS: We did discuss this with Senator Feldnan when we came down 

before, the day that it snowed. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Can you sununarize his response to your opposition 

based upon your presentation? 

MS. SELLERS: We did not give Senator Fel&nan the presentation. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: I see. 'I'hank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Exhibit A, more than likely, as you point out, are 

the test scores. If we go to the Meisner Report versus the Minimum Basic Skills 

1'est,statewide, we have a failure rate of about 23% to 25%. If you go to the Meisner 

Report, and we take the top ·10 school districts in the state, 67, really, and include 

Morristown, Asbury Park, and one other, and you have done that here, we find out that 

we have a 45% failure rate. 

We then turn around and we put back into that compensatory ed. program 

$67 million. I know you are very familiar with compensatory ed. money in your 

community,as are all these cities, because I recognize how important that is. Are 

you suggesting to me, then, that the same amount of money would be required? In 

other words, you are testing on the third, sixth, ninth and eleventh grade levels. 

The cost of this program, for instance, if it were implemented in East Orange ·-- Yu11 

are not suggesting to me that it is going to be worth $67 million. I think what 

you are suggesting to me is that they are going to be the same students. The ones that 

fail the minimum basic skills test in ninth grade are going to be the same students who 

would fail this test, even if it were a different test, assuming that it were? 

MS. SELLERS: No, sir, what I am implying, and perhaps I should have 

stated, is that I feel that urban districts are unique in character, and that they 

have characteristics of pupil populations that are unique only to urban areas, and 

that I am imploring that you look very, very carfully at a multiplicity of variables 

that may or may not have been considered before you enact legislation that could 

have an extremely detrimental and shattering effect upon the children who have no 

more control over those variables than you do. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: I understand that. But, we are still talking about 

the cost of implementing the program. Whether this test was locally implemented 

and conceived, or state, matters not, the point is, the job ought to be done one 

way or another. You do have it within your authority right now, as does every 

other board of education in New Jersey, to do it. You don't need this legislation. 

We have been constantly reminded of that today. But, regardless of how it got done, 

it needs to be done, or needed to be done. I am just getting to your money part 

of the question. I want to try and separate those two. 

The point is, correct me if you don't agree, or if I am wrong, the 

implementation of the comp. ed. money now, pumping that money into that district 

now for the very same reasons we are talking about--- Like the young lady you 

mentioned in your report, if the job isn't done now, and you have to give the test 

in the eleventh grade, you already have a problem. The fact of the matter is, 

however, we are giving those tests in the third grade and in the sixth grade, and 

the very first students to deal with this legislation are presently your sixth 

graders. Now, if you tested them in the third grade on statewide minimum basic 

skills, if you missed the third grade because of any reason, certainly you are tested 

in the fourth grade, because that was also required by law. That was your test, 

however, by the Department, and then you tested them in the fifth grade, with 

your ,test approved by the Department, arrl this year you will test them in the sixth 

grade with our minimum basic skills test statewide. 

So, it seems to me that these youngsters we are talking about five years 

down the road, your district has already tested them five times. I dm really hoping 
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that by the time we get to the ninth grade, these problems have to be eliminated, 

or we have all failed. It matters not where the money is coming from, who did it 

or didn't do it. The fact of the matter is, we are putting $67 million out for the 

third year in a row for these comp. ed. youngsters, and all districts have comp. ed., 

not just the cities. Isn't it reasonable, then,to assume that the money might 

not really be as important as some of us want to make it sound right now, in view 

of the fact that we are on top of the problem, or supposed to be? 

MS. SELLERS: I would like to answer your qU12stion with two thoughts. 

One of those thoughts is that you have brought about a problem that I alluded to 

and that is, I have no guarantee in an urban school district that the child I test 

in the third grade will be the same child I will test again in the ninth grade. That 

is one of my points. So, our concern is not as much with the testing process, but 

with the stamping of children with an inferior diploma type process. 

The children of East Orange are not afraid of test.:>. They are not afraid 

of failing tests; they are not afraid of remediation. But, I as the Superintendent 

of Schools want to be reassured that there will not be some li?gislation passed that 

will require me to remove a child from my system by virtue of the fact that he may 

or may not have failed the tests, and in doing so, giving him a piece of paper, 

with which he can do absolutely nothing, so our greater conce:~n is the diploma aspect 

of the bill, not the testing aspect. 

Now, the second part is, if indeed our children mu:3t be subjected to the 

i:ossibility of receiving an inferior diploma, then, I would raise the question of 

having the finances available to extend the school year to pm: in the tutorial 

programs, to put in the intensified teaching program that will be necessary to have 

the child who characteristically comes to me in the eleventh qrade, leave the twelfth 

grade with an acceptable diploma. That is my concern. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Are you concerned that the state standards could be 

set too high or too low? 

MS. SELLERS: I am concerned that because I represE?nt an urban district, 

and the variables that usually affect the transiency of my clientele will inherently 

indicate failure by virtue of the fact that they will not hav(~ had the benefit of 

my complete testing or my complete comp. ed. program as it is presently mounted,_ 

or that you propose to mount as testing in this bill. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: So, then, that would show up on the evaluation of 

your school district. There is a negative that you can see. 

MS. SELLERS: But more primarily it would show up on the evaluation of 

the child. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Well, what do you propose to do with that child 

that you are speaking to that you didn't have all this time? What alternatives 

do we have, rather than just continuing doing what we are doing? What do you 

suggest? I think you are talking about a youngster that moves into your district 

in the tenth grade or eleventh grade, or even in ninth grade, or maybe the eighth 

grade, but you wouldn't get a chance to test them until the ninth grade. What do 

you propose we do with those youngsters, anything? 

MS. SELLERS: Well, I would propose, or would suggE~st, that if you have 

established a constraint that may or may not affect this child's progress for the 

rest of his life, then we are obligated to give that child every possible opportunity 

to achieve the goal that we as adults have set for them. And, if in the instance 

we indeed must do that for a child because by virtue of his heritage, his socio-economic 
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background, his socio-economic condition, he comes to us at a late time in hi.s 

educational career, then we must have something mounted to prevent his beinq shut 

off from educational possibility simply by virtue of his condition. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Mrs. Garvin, do you have anything further? 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN GARVIN: I think, Dan, that you made a good point. I was 

hoping that you would get the point of what alternatives are there. We are talking 

about the mobility. It is not just the mobility from the sixth to the ninth grade. 

It is the mobility from September to October, and from October to January, and from 

January to February. I think that was a crucial question, because that is the 

kind of mobility that exists in an urban district. It .JS not from the sixth grade 

to the eighth grade. It is from one month to another. I think his question was, 

what, as an educator, do you see that we can do about this problem, since these 

young people are not responsible presently for their mobility? But, that very 

mobility is affecting his learning process. What would you, as an educator, perhaps, 

throw out on the table? 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: That is a touqh qu01~ ti on, by the way. 

MS. SELLERS: Not really. I would see the value of the propos(•d testing 

program in this instance to help, as I have outlined three very good applications of 

assessment - the description of a child's achievement and some explanation as to why 

the child is achieving at that level, and a detennination of his competency before 

we decide to promote him, or to graduate him at that point in time. But, you do 

realize that in urban districts, East Orange specifically, we are constantly growing 

in pupil enrollment, and we could conceivably--- My answer would be, let me keep 

him until I can get him to a point where he can function all right. But, realistically, 

that in itself would be self-defeating, because I would kill the district by retaining 

every child who needed to be retained, and unless some additional financial support 

was provided to give us extra schools, extra personnel, the extra proqrarnming that 

we require to get the child to the level of achievement that the proposed bill is 

intimating, then, I would be helpless. 

ASSEMBLYMAN RAND: Mrs. Sellers, I also come from an urban school district, 

and know it very well. I am going to ask you a couple of questions which might not 

pertain to the bill, but the basic philosophy of teaching. I believe that once they 

get to the ninth grade, we have almost lost them. There is a remedial process, but 

you have almost lost them. I have emphasized the fact that I thought we ought to 

have some massive input on the basic skills. What do you do in your schools? I 

can appreciate the fact that you have transients. We have the same transients. We 

are no different than anybody else. We have the same turnover, the same non-stability 

as most urban areas. 

MS. SELLERS: In the city of East Orange, we do have a yearly testing 

program that helps to assay a child's achievement level at a given point. 

ASSEMBLYMAN RAND: Starting at what grade? 

MS. SELLERS: In the first grade, and as the child progresses. In addition to our 

basal testing program that we administer every year at each grade level, we use 

publisher tests in reference to our reading and math series that help us further 

determine the level of competency and level of perfonnance and individual needs 

that the child may require. Once these tests are given, and the performance levels 

are established, we put the child into a program that is designed to meet his 

beginning level need through the assistance of compensa.t:.ory education. Basecl 

upon where the level is, we attempt to intensify the learning process with the 
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child in the areas of reading and mathematics specifically to bring him up to an 

acceptable performance level, or the nonnal level for his peer group. 

ASSEMBLYMAN RAND: Now, let me ask you one more quE!Stion in conjunction 

with that. Would an earlier enrollment for some of these children help? 

MS. SELLERS: Help them? 

ASSEMBLYMAN RAND: I mean, at least accelerate their understanding of 

the basic skills. I am thinking· of some of the empty school rooms we have, and some 

of the empty classrooms that we now have, and the diminishing school populations 

in attempting to move some of these children into a quicker pa,ce than they would 

nonnally be accepted. 

MS. SELLERS: Are you speaking of earlier in terms of age? 

ASSEMBLYMAN RAND: Yes, yes, yes. 

MS. SELLERS: Well, sir, most psychologists whom I have studied do 

infer children learn at different rates, so I could not categorically state that 

by reaching a child at an earlier level would enhance his learning. He will learn 

only when he is ready to learn. However, I would prefer, if I had a preference, if 

I had an empty classroom, which I don't in East Orange - we ca.n't even relate to that -

but if we did, I think I would prefer perhaps to spread out tl:,e population, as we 

currently enroll it, and perhaps provide more intensified instruction to smaller groups 

of children, as opposed to younger groups of children. 

ASSEMBLYMAN RAND: Thank you very much. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN GARVIN: You know, we just passed a bill at our last meeting 

that permits local boards, Bebe, to rent space in other districts where there are 

vacant schools. Besides Mrs. Sellers being here today, there are also three principals 

here. I have Mr. Daniels from my Columbian School, which is a. middle school, and I 

have Mr. Penn from East Orange High School, Principal, and I have Mr. Pidgeon from 

Clifford Scott High School. This new bill permits local boards to rent buildings 

in other districts where they have a decrease in enrollment. I think that perhaps 

is something we should look at, because everyone here is talking about a decrease 

in enrollment, and we are looking for more space. We are trying to buy an office 

building. 

I am just telling you, so when we come for the money, you are going to 

understand the problem. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Mrs. Sellers, I too come from a school district 

with no space. Our high school is still on split session, and it has been for five 

or six years now. 

very 

does 

I have one 

bright. On your 

more question. I am an old school board member, so I am not 

Exhibit A, in your last column, you have, "Dropout." What 

that mean? 

MS. SELLERS: That is percent minority dropout for that particular district. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Dropout of school? 

MS. SELLERS: Dropout for that particular district. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Well, let's explain that, ther.. Let's take 

Pleasantville. You have 2978 students, and 69% of them did le·ss than 65th percentile 

in reading~ is that correct? 

MS. SELLERS: No, they were chosen because of their math score. They 

scored at the 43.6% percentile in mathematics. That is why that one was chosen. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: All right, but what is the 65 .. 8%? 

MS. SELLERS: That is the present minority dropout.. In other words, 

Pleasantville has a 74.1% minority student factor of that 2,978 and of that 74.1%, 
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their minority dropouts are 65.8%. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Are you trying to tell me that from the beginning 

of the year to the end of the year, the 65% of that minority will not be there? 

MS. SELLERS: I am trying to tell you, sir, that as a result of this 

report, which I have identified for you, the report states that 65.8% of the students 

who dropped out were minority students. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Of those that dropped out, that is very interesting. 

Thank you very much for your participation. 

C H U C K 

MS. SELLERS: Thank you very much. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Chuck Sutton. 

S U T T 0 N: My name is Chuck Sutton. I am representing the 

African Liberation Support Committee, as well as the Concerned Citizens Coalition 

of Newark, and I am also a member of my P.T.A., which is the Roberto Clemente Elementary 

School P.T.A. 

I will read to you from the text of a leaflet which we have done. Over 

1732 educational workers are being laid off in Newark. Our educational budget is 

being cut. Rutgers University is laying off more than 60 professors. Is this 

quality education? 

In some New Jersey schools, there are already as many as 40 students 

per classroom. There are no books, or not enough books to go around. over half 

of the students who graduate cannot even read. Students, parents, and the community 

all across the country have risen up time and time again to demand an end to the 

cuts in education. We want our sons, our daughters, our brothers and sisters to 

have a decent education. But, how does our State legislature answer our cries? They 

give us the basic skills test, a test that will place the blame of the educational 

crisis on the students themselves. The name of this bill is deceiving. It will not 

offer any sort of basic skills, but will create an unjust system of two high schoo1 

diplomas. 

Those students who pass the so-called basic skills test will receiv(: c.i 

diploma endorsed by the State. But, those who fail the exam will receive a 

worthless certificate of attendance. That is a slap in the face. After we have 

already gone through twelve years of education, this one test can determine our 

future. Is this what we call quality education? 

Statistics gathered from the basic skills tests administered to college 

students are alarming. Over 43% of all college freshmen graduating from New Jersey 

High Schools fail the test. If almost half of the students who have academic grades 

high enough to go to college fail the test, what will happen to the average high 

school student when they take this test? 

In North Carolina, a trial run shows what will happen. 54% of all high 

school students fail the test. 84% of the black students fail the test, and 87% of 

the families with incomes of $5600 or less fail. This test is going to deny thousands 

of our youth a diploma if we permit the State Assembly to pass the bill. The majority 

of students who will receive the certificate, rather than the diploma, will be the 

poor, the working class, especially blacks and Hispanics. 

I want to call your attention to a New York Times editorial printed this 

Sunday, and it stated, "Political implications of this test can be exemplified by 

the statistics from Florida as well - that 17% of the students fail the reading and 

writing, and 45% fail the math, compared to the white student population, 3% fail 

the reading, and 24% fail the math. 11 And, I think 24% for white students is still 
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a very high figure. People have been relying on the statistics from Denver, and 

I wanted to point out that the Denver test is a bogus test, b~cause it is even 

geared to, like, the sixth grade. So, it is like a paper statistic used to promote 

the test, rather than any valid statistics. 

What will lie ahead for these students? They won't be able to get good 

paying jobs. Many will be forced into unemployment; students will be pushed to 

drop out, and those who graduate will not be assured of a dip.Loma. Those that 

manage to make it to college will have to take the test again, the basic skills 

test in New Jersey, and before they go to the junior year of college, they are 

subjected to this test once again. The number of students being able to make it 

to the next stage of education will get lower, and lower, and correspondingly, the 

amount of money the State puts into schools will become less and less each year. 

New Jersey already has one of the highest unemployment rates :.n the nation. Plus, 

plans are on the way to create more industrial parks in New JE~rsey, to attract more 

l::Jusiness into the area. Now, they will be able to get our students with a certificate 

doing the same job as a student with a diploma, only this time~ they won't have to 

pay them as much. 

Our youth are part of a package deal of cheap labor to attract new 

business. The basic skills bill will only serve the interest of J & J, Mattel 

Toys, Prudential, Art Metals and Mc Donalds, and all those industries who benefit 

by the high unemployment rate. It forces our youth to accept non-union and very low 

paying jobs. The attack on our standards of living comes in many forms. In Newark, 

over 1,000 teachers are being laid off. A similar crisis will face teachers all 

over the state. Substitute teachers are becoming a thing of the past, and since the 

Bocci decision has been passed, minority students in educational programs have been 

cut left and right. Our social services have been dramatically affected by massive 

cuts. And, still, the state through the test wants to shift more of the financial 

crisis on us. 

It is coming in a way of a competency test. At a time when the quality 

of education is poor, this test is not in our interest. We are losing our schools, 

our social services. We are losing everything that means anything to us. And, 

rather than putting money into education, the state gives us the test. But, meanwhile 

Governor Byrne entices prospective corporations by advertising that certain state 

taxes have been reduced, to make it cheaper for them to get businesses into New 

Jersey. 

In closing, based on the situation we have in Newark, where the educational 

system has been sharply attacked, we are losing 1732 workers through the layoffs 

orchestrated by Mayor Gibson, Carl Shariff; we have had so-called program modifications 

that are cutting art, music, recreation. They are cutting out the heart of education. 

And, what they are saying is, our educational system is going to be better now, because 

it is all going to be basic skills, and in reality in a school system that is already 

suffering from poor interest of students even wanting to go to classes, the latest 

cuts, coupled with the passing of a competency test is not on1y unjust 1 it is 

criminal. And, we guarantee you that the same response that we are giving to the 

cuts in Newark now, demonstrations, the closing of schools, if you pass this bill, 

you will see a response from the students in demanding a quality education. This 

test is worse than the Bocci decision. This test is an outright attack on blacks, 

Hispanics, and white working class youth, because it categorically will deny us a 

right to a quality education. It will categorically take away from us the opportunity 
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for many of our students to be able to even think of going twelve years, becdu:::>c' 

students will be dropping out like flies, because tl1t.'Y know that the te::=;t i ::-.; not 

intended in their interest and it will push them out of the educational system. 

Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: I have one question. 

for these kids? 

Mlat do you propose to do 

MR. SUTTON: I am not satisfied with the educational system at all. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Are the kids satisfied? 

MR. SUTTON: I don't think the youth are satisfied at all. As a matter 

of fact, one of the demands of the educational system in Newark that we are proposing--­

We were not satisfied with the educational system before, you know, and I don't 

understand how an Education Committee can even allow things that go down in Newark, 

at the same time? Can you answer that question? 

How can you talk about the basic skills tests when all these cuts are 

coming in education, and when the educational budget is being cut? If you look at 

the newspapers, you will see that they are laying people off left and right. You 

are talking about compensatory education programs, and that is a joke. 

Why would you give us a test in the face of all this? I mean it is,like, 

here we are carrying the burden of this poor educational system, and you go f:3i t 

on us with a test: you penalize us. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Thank you very much. Art Thomas, New Jersey 

Association of Citizens for Education. 

A R T T H O M A S: Good afternoon. We understood that other organizations 

were presenting technical analyses of the bill that had to deal with the deficiencies, 

so I have given you a summary statement of some considerations of New Jersey 

Association of Citizens for Education in opposition to the bill. At our founding 

convention last October Senator Feldman was in attendance and had a lively debate 

with our constituency about this bill, and we are glad to see that some of the 

amendments in the bill reflect that debate. 

And, as we understand their support, continuing from Senator Feldman for 

the bill, we hope that ther0. will be many more amendments to that bill if it isn't 

going to come up for a vote. But, in any case, our coalition, composed of citizens and 

parents from across the State, from north and south, opposed the bill primarily 

because we feel the Department of Education could not implement it. We are alroady 

suffering under the compensatory programming that is supposed to ensue from the 

minimum basic skills competency test. We are holding public hearings in several 

of our cities to see if we can document what we can sense in our parent meetings, 

and we are beginning to do that. And, that is, that program is in shambles. 

We know also thatthe law sti_pulatesthat there should be maximum citizen 

involvement in the elements in the T & E process. And, we do feel the Department 

has failed to provide the leadership and guidelines to insure that that happens. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: What has that got to do with this bill? 

MR. THOMAS: This is a bill that would be implemented by the Department 

of Education. And, although it is not in the bill, the Department is charged with 

monitoring the evaluation of local districts and through a related organization, we 

have won a court victory against the Commissioner of Education and the State Board 

of Education for failure to implement key sections of the T & E bill. So, what 

we are saying is, here is another piece of very important,, potentially important, 

legislation that would fall to the Department of Education to implement. At the 

present time, we don't see the leadership or direction coming from that Department 
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that would lend us any kind of confidence in a fair and just administration of this 

bill. 

Secondly, from our parental involvement, from our citizen participation 

in our districts, as exemplified by our test scores on the pn~sent statewide testing 

program, education's system itself is in shambles. When you read that in Newark, East 

Orange, Paterson, Jersey City, Camden, the number of children who are 

able to perform above the state standards in reading at sixth grade and ninth grade 

you are talking about 30% to 35% of the students able to do this. If you talk about 

the number of students who were able to perform above 65%, which is the state 

standard in computational skills, once again, you are talking 25%, 30%, 35% of the 

students. 

Now, supposedly those scores trigger compensatory programming. But, if 

you have that significantly large number of people failing to achieve these kinds 

of standards, we are not talking about compensatory programming, we are talking 

about the need to overhaul that system. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: We are aware of those things. 

MR. THOMAS: All right, so the direction of this bill is to put exit 

requirements on a student who is expected to go through a system that is in shambles, 

and that is an unfair penalty toward the children. 

So, those are the key provisions we feel should be taken into account 

in any kind of weighing of the merits of a requirement for high school graduation. 

Thank you, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Thank you, any questions? 

ASSEMBLYMAN RAND: Yes, you might want to include me on your mailing 

list. I was left out, but I do have constituents down in the fifth district. 

MR. THOMAS: Okay, I will be glad to do that. I arr. sorry for that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Thank you very much, Mr. Thomas. Jerothia Riggs. 

(No response.) 

Robert Woodford, New Jersey Business and Industry Association. 

R 0 B E R T W 0 0 D F 0 R D: Thank you. I will be very brief. I don It 

have a written statement. The position I will be presenting is that of our 

Committee on Education of the New Jersey Business and Industry Association that 

has been discussing this problem for a number of years, and has been very much 

involved in the past in the development of the State minimum skills standards, which 

we think have been of great importance in the T & E scheme. 

We favor the concept of this bill. We don't favor all of its provisions, 

but we do think it is necessary to have a high school graduation standard primarily 

before the identification of the problem - the kind of identification that the minimum 

basic skills standards have been providing us with, but identification of a problem 

on a broader scale. That is the high school's obligation of preparation in which we 

have been able to sweep the problem under the rug with the social promotion, the 

automatic degree if one attends an adequate period of high sch:>ol years. 

We have seen the problem from the standpoint of employers and not seeking 

a record that we can hang our hat on, but we are seeking students who come out of 

school capable of holding jobs, with the work habits and necessary skills to learn 

on the job, to work with instructions, to succeed economically in their own lives. 

There is a growing problem - a growing awareness of the problem I should say - in 

this state that our labor force is not all it has been assumed to be. We are now 

finding from businesses particularly in the urban areas that they cannot get the 
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kind of employees that they are seeking. Now, that is a major problem in New Jersey's 

economy. Obviously,providing jobs in urban areas is essential economically to New 

Jersey. It is the area of greatest failure where the unemployment rates, particularly 

among minorities,are exceptionally high, and the answer really lies in equipping those 

who are educated in those areas to be self-supporting, to be succ(-'ssfu l in thej r 

economic lives and their adult lives generally. This h;1:-; not bef>n don0. It 1:~ not 

an easy problem. we don't suggest that thE' hi qh school graduation st amla rd j ~.> a 

panac('a or that there will not be transi Uona] problr'rns, or that this in itscJf i:-:> a 

major solution to the educational program problems. What it does is set a 

target. 

In our view, what the State should do is take the minimum basic skills 

standards and testing system and integrate it with a high school graduation standard. 

We should not be prescribing all of the elements of the high school graduation 

We should permit the local district to set their own standards, but 

supc,rimpose the State minimum basic skills standard. 

Our position, incidentally, is extremely close to that of the New Jersey 

School Boards Association, and in reading their statement, I think we would go along 

with everything in that statement except the separate state certificate. We do not 

believe that this bill or that proposal - setting a separate local or state certificate­

is a good idea. There should be one high school state standard, and we should not 

open the door to the superficial degree again in any way. 

On the matter of the cost of the program, there undoubtedly will be certain 

administrative costs that have been mentioned. There would be remediation costs, but 

in essence, we have a law on the books today in the minimum basic skills testing 

program, the T & E law itself which requires remediation. This is the same remediation, 

and we have in the colleges today a very costly program of remediation in all of the 

private and public schools in New Jersey. There is some testing to determine whether 

the entering freshman has the necessary skill levels to deal with college level work. 

A substantial number do not have that skill level. We are spending their time, 

their tuition, and the state 1 s subsidy of college education which is substantia 1 -

for remediation at the college level which ought to be accomplished a good deal 

sooner. 

So, in talking costs, these should not be viewed in isolation, because we 

are in essence eliminating certain costs in the period of time, which we now incur, 

and the largest of which are the costs of failure in the system when we find, on our 

unemployment roles, on our welfare roles, and in our institutions,persons who should 

have been provided with a better educational opportunity and could have stood on 

their own feet, had they been provided with that opportunity. 

Ultimately, thP- answer has to lie in something beyond a high school 

graduation standard. We recognize this, and this is only a piece of the needed 

approach to the problem of education. We have to be sure that teachers and students 

are attending school. We have to be sure that the classroom atmosphere is conducive 

to or at least permits learning. We have to be sure that those who are instructing 

themselves have the basic skills sufficiently to teach them, and that is not 

always the case. We have to be certain that the educational system is sufficiently 

flexible to identify a student's needs, and in the case of the mobil school population 

identify them when that student enters the school, and the identification of needs, 

and the prescription of the program has to go on as that student enters school and 

it has to go on constantly. This is not a substitutE', and we don't support it as a 

substitute. But, the school that fails, given this standard, will be under additional 
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pressure from parents, from students, and I am sure from this legislature, and from 

those of us who represent organizations who are interested in hiring those graduates 

to improve the product, to improve the system. It would be unfair to simply impose 

a standard on a student without making the other effort in NE~wark and other districts 

to get at the very serious deficiencies that exist, arrl thesE~ are not basically 

financial deficiencies, as I understand them, but some serious program deficiencies 

in certain of the school programs, in certain of the portions of that school district. 

Essentially, that is our position, to support the concept of a single degree 

requirement, a single degree in which the state superimposes the minimum basic 

skills standard upon the degree requirements of the local dh;trict, and does not 

attempt to substitute for the entirety of the local district~;• graduation standard. 

We would rely on the T & E and monitoring process for the qualitative improvement o 

of the balance of that school program. 

Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Thank you. I appreciate bui::iness being represented 

here today. Thank you very much. Ronald Frye. 

RONALD F R Y E: My name is Ronal Frye. I am Administrative Assistant to 

Alcinzo Cottrelles, Executive Superintendent of Schools in Newark, testifying for 

earl Sharif, President of the Newark Board of Education. 

My Superintendent would think that I was somewhat remiss if I did not 

correct some statements that were made here earlier with respect to layoffs. There 

are not 1732 people being laid off in Newark. Instead, that total is 1103. And, 

there are not 1,000 teachers being laid off. That total of 1,103 includes 260 

teachers. Another correction, art and music is not being eliminated from the 

elementary schools; ·instead art and music is to be provided by the classroom 

teacher with the help fof a resource teacher. 

I have a prepared statement from our Board President. As I address 

this Assembly on the issue of minimum standards, I want to make it clear that the 

Newark Board of Education is in no way against the betterment of education for 

its children. In addition, the Newark Board of Education stands ready to support 

improved quality of education for its neighbors as well. We are in agreement with 

the wisdom of the authors of this proposed legislation which seeks to restore 

rreaning to the prior certificate commonly referred to as the high school diploma. 

The granting of a high school diploma by the local board of education assumes that 

such recipients are capable of meeting the social and political responsibilities 

that continue to sustain our chosen form of government. 

We do not agree, however, that state endorsed dipl8mas indicating a 

student's ability to do simple computation and read directions from a map is 

sufficient to label some pupils more fit than others. In the urban districts 

across this state, as well as urban districts across the country, the determination 

of educational minimums far above the present performance elevels will adversely 

affect the chances of minority children to lead full and productive lives. I have 

already alluded to the difficulty in determining a student's ability based on 

his or her performance on the minimum basic skills test. Such use of these tests 

were not intended in the first place. The value of these tests is in their utility 

for assisting in the identification of skill areas that requi:~e further instructional 

support. To ultimately penalize students for poor performanc1? on tests that are 

invalid for determining corrununication and computation abiliti1?s is a serious 

abuse of state power. 
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Moreover, recent examples of minimum standards testinq show that black 

and other minority children do not perform well on such tests. Perhaps the mo.st 

compelling example of majority student bias and the test contents is the result of 

Dade County Florida's minimum standards testing program implemented .last year, in 

which 77% of all minority students stested failed to achieve pre-set minimums. 

Let me reaffirm our position. The Newark Board of Education is quite 

favorably disposed to equality of educational opportunity fora all children and in 

all states. The so-called thorough and efficient law proposed to provide such r~qual 

chances, I need not belabor the point that T & E did no such thing. There are still 

many districts in the state that provide two or three times more equality of educational 

opportunity than poorer districts. Our research shows that because of the large 

numbers of pupils who will require compensatory services if this legislation is 

passed, the school district of Newark will need funds far in excess of our current 

spending level in order to make up for skill deficiencies in ferred from minimum 

standards tests. Analysis of our more recent minimum basic skills testing program 

indicat0s that up to 60% of our current sixth graders will not be eliqible for bona 

fide diplomas. Remediation will be costly. 

We note, however, that the current proposed legislation authorizes no 

funds for the design, staffing and implementation of programs that bring identified 

students up to minimum performance levels. While we support this Assembly's concern 

with improving the quality of education offered to New Jersey•s more than one million 

pupils, we ask that this same Assembly consider the economic impact of its proposed 

legislation, as well as future hardships on children affected by its wise decisions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: I think that they are opposed to the bill, aren't they? 

I am really not that sure from the way the statement read. 

MR. FRYE: Yes, they are. 

ASSEMBLYMAN NEWMAN: Thank you, Mr. Frye. That concludes our hearing 

for today. Thank you all for coming. 

(HEARING CONCLUDED) 

31A 





NEW JERSEY TAXPAYERS ASSOCIATION INC. e 104 NORTH BROAD STREET e TRENTON, N.J. 08608 e TELEPHONE: AREA CODE 609-394-3116 

Febnuuy 7, 1979 

Honorable Daniel F. Ne\\lnaD, Chainnan, Assembly Q:mnittee on Education 

Harold Martin, Vice Cllairman 
Mildred Barry Garvin 
Walter Rand 
Gerald Stockman 
Marie H. Muhler 
H. Jazres Saxton 

Re. Senate No. 1154 CCR, requiring a test 
for high school graduation 

Honorable Members of the Assanbly Education Corrmittce: 

'Tile New Jersey Taxpayers Association, through jts Conmittee on Education 
and Executive C.annittee ,has considered Senate No. 1154 CCR, which v.uuld require 
a test for high school graduation. The bill was evaluated against established 
Association policy on graduation requirarents which favors a "State prescribed 
test for high school graduation contingent on developrrent of the overall T&E 
systan with periodic tests and raredial programs'' . 

NJTA sup]X)rts the concept of Senate No. 1154 c:x::R; however, the Association 
is concerned that high school testing may develop i.ndependent of existing state­
wide basic skills tests. As a rreans of keeping costs of testing at a minirm.Jn 
and aiding the phasing in of the new testing program with the.le~t a.rrnilllt of 
difficulty and minimum of papeIW:>rk, NJTA suggests there should be close 
coordination of the testing schedule of the new program with the cuITent testing 
schedule. 

We hope you share our concern in this regard and will so provide if the 
bill is cleared by the Camlittee. 

r 

lX 

Sincerely yo•irs ~ 

~~,;;,~ 
John L. Mclxmnell 
President 

AN ORGANIZED CITIZEN EFFCRT FOR EFFICIENT, ECONOMICAL GOVERNMENT 



Statement for presentation at a public hearing on February 28, 1979 before the 
Assembly Education Committee on S-1154 by Frank K. Totten, president of the 
New Jersey Education Association. 

I am Frank Totten, president of the New Jersey Education Association, 

an organization which represents over 100,000 teachers, college faculty, and 

other school and college employees directly concerned with providing to every 

student in New Jersey the highest quality education, the most qualified 

teachers, and the best learning environment. With me is Edie Fulton, NJEA 

secretary-treasurer. 

On June 20, 1978 I appeared before the Senate Education Committee at a 

public hearing to discuss NJEA' s views on S-1154. Althoug·h I will not repeat 

that testimony, I would like to elaborate on just a couplE! of points made at 

that time. 

Mr. Chairman, the concern that the schools of New Jersey provide all their 

students maximum opportunities to develop proficiency in basic academic skills 

and other skills needed in everyday life is one which is shared by teachers 

throughout our state. Our concern for student learning is the reason for 

NJEA's interest in S-1154. One behalf of teachers I would like to share with 

the Committee our observations of the real needs of students and our suggestions 

for working together with you as legislators and parents for the continuing 

benefit of our public school students. 

S-1154, as originally proposed, was a bill which NJEl\. felt was describing 

a problem, but not solving it. We viewed the bill as one which was penalizing 

children, not helping them. To determine whether a child would get a diploma 

by his/her performance on a single statewide t_est is, indeed, educationally unsound. 
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There is no way to relate test scores to students' success in adult roles. 

Additionally, there are those children who do not test well. My point is that 

it would be totally unfair to a child to identify him/her as a failure based on 

a single test. 

NJEA was pleased to see that S-1154 was amended in the Senate Education 

Conunittee to provide some appropriate protection to students. The sponsor of 

S-1154, who is to be commended for his advocacy of quality education, was amenable 

to some of the suggestions put forward by organizations, including NJEA, which 

had serious concerns about S-1154. Less emphasis on a single test, required 

remediation, less differentiation in diplomas, and the addition of a transcript 

of high school experiences were changes made in S-1154 and all supported by NJEA. 

While NJEA believes that the amended version of S-1154 is far more meaningful 

for children than the original bill, it still has concerns with the proposed 

legislation. Let me detail those concerns and where possible recommend specific 

amendatory language to S-1154. 

Primarily, NJEA raises the question of funding for S-1154. If diploma 

standards are to be established, then required, adequate, meaningful remediation 

must be provided to students who have difficulty reaching those standards. 

Remediation costs money. Without proper funding from the state for this state 

mandate, the bill is worthless. Local boards will be limited in what they can 

provide due to lack of resources and/or stringent "cap" provisions. 

Mention has been made of coordinating the remediation program in S-1154 

with the current compensatory education program. NJEA raises qu~stions regarding 

that recorranendation because we believe that the current compensatory education 

efforts cannot do the job. 

Many problems have arisen in the operation and funding of the compensatory 

education program in New Jersey. How students are identified as needing 

compensatory education has produced some problems. Although the Administrative 
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Code provides that the statewide test is not to be the only instrument in evalu­

ating students for compensatory education, the truth of the matter is that in 

many cases it is. Children who do not need remediation have "failed" the state­

wide test -- children who do need it have "passed" the test. Those districts 

that need the comprehensive evaluation the most can least afford to supply 

comprehensive methods, e.g., child study teams, to evaluate. 

Another concern of NJEA is that the current compensatory education law and 

regulation provide no maintenance of effort requirement. Local boards have 

"reclassified" programs to qualify for state funds. Local boards are not 

encouraged to build remediation programs through local efforts because they are 

stymied by budget caps. 

In addition, student absenteeism during the administration of the Minimum 

Basic Skills Test is a major factor when determining the number of students 

needing remediation and the money needed to fund that remediation. In November 1978 

the Office of Educational Assessment, Division of Operations, Research and 

Evaluation, N.J. Department of Education released data on student absenteeism 

during the administration of the Minimum Basic Skills Test. The data showed 

that many of our urban districts had high rates of absenteeism, e.g., for the 

grade eleven test: Camden City (22%}; Orange (31%); Trenton (26%); Passaic 

City (27%); and Long Branch City (20%). How many of these students were later 

tested? How many would have required compensatory education so as to generate 

a need for more compensatory education funding? 

There is another problem we see in the compensatory education program. 

The Minimum Basic Skills Test assesses children on conununication and computational 

skills. You will be interested in knowing that while 96.2% of the local districts 

require four years of English, mathematics requirements are lacking. About 73% 

of local districts require one year or less of mathematics. Twenty percent of 

our high schools require no mathematics course. No assessment procedure should 
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assess knowledge or skills unless the opportunity to acquire such is part of the 

district's education plan to provide appropriate curricula. 

NJEA urges this committee to guarantee adequate funding for S-1154. To pass 

S-1154 without it will be a hoax on the public and a severe punishment on children. 

NJEA offers·the following amendments to S-1154. We feel that these would 

strengthen the bill and if accepted by this committee, along with a guarantee of 

adequate funding, will produce a bill which will have the support of NJEA. 

-- Insertion of language to guarantee that no pupil is denied a diploma based 

solely on his/her performance of the statewide assessment test is needed. 

Additional language to provide that a comprehensive evaluation is given to those 

students who do not pass the statewide assessment test will reinforce protection 

for the student and truly lead to the opportunity for improved learning for that 

child. · 

The introduction of differentiated diplomas gives NJEA concern. Our goal 

must be to have as many children as possible receive that diploma and we must do 

that by providing the best education. The dual-diploma proposal can be inter­

preted as "racism" and may be a possible violation of basic civil and human rights. 

Besides, local boards do not need anx more confusion. One diploma is necessary 

for those students passing the state and local standards. 

-- Remediation programs should be required for those students who are 

evaluated as needing same. Stronger language is needed in S-1154 to do so. 

The elements of a comprehensive evaluation should be conducted each school 

year as part of an ongoing process and reviewed at the end and beginning of each 

school year. S-1154 requires that local boards of education provide remedial 

instruction for those students who do not meet the state and district examination 

standards for graduation at the end of the tenth grade. Recognizing that the 

bill concentrates on the secondary level, we recommend that S-1154 be amended to 

provide remedial help to those students who do not meet standards at the end 
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of at least the ninth grade. The earlier deficiencies are caught, the better 

for the child. 

-- Many teachers have reported that they have been under pressure by administrators 

to make changes in their assessment of students. Indeed, there have been cases 

where changes in .student grades have been made by administrators over the teachers' 

objections. These situations often stem from parent pressure. Obviously, such 

action does not provide the student with the opportunity to learn that which 

is expected of him/her. What it also does is lower the standards established 

by teachers in their classrooms. 

Language should be included in S-1154 so that this type of situation does 

not exist. Student assessment by teachers should not be arbitrarily changed by 

administrators or others in authority. ~; 

-- NJEA supports the concepts expressed in S-1154 which states that, " ... the 

local board of education shall provide additional remedial instruction specifically 

directed toward mastery of those proficiencies identified as necessary for the 

awarding of a diploma which may include but need not be limited to an extended 

school year, extended school day, or additional school years." However, we feel 

that the impact on terms and conditions of employment of tE!achers can be major. 

We recommend strongly that language be inserted to respect existing collective 

bargaining laws. The following language should be added to that section: 

" ... provided that such additional assignments shall be sub:j ect to negotiations 

with the majority representative of the unit including the teachers in question ... " 

I have outlined for you NJEA's recommendation on amending S-1154. I would 

also like to take this opportunity to make further recommendations to your 

conunittee. Mr. Chairman, while these recommendations are such that they may 

not be appropriate to place into S-1154, they are what we believe sincere 

means to help accomplish what the sponsor of S-1154 had in mind -- improved learning. 

• The NJEA believes that current curricular requirements mandated by the 

state for graduation should be augmented. Courses in basic skills of communica~ions, 
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computation, citizenship, science and physical education should be offered 

consistent with the recommendations of the N.J. State Committee on High School 

Graduation Requirements. Assemblywoman Barbara McConnell's bill A-1577 which 

has NJEA's general support addresses this issue. A-1577 should be considered 

soon as it will supplement S-1154 appropriately. We firmly believe that there 

should be guarantees that the local districts will provide additional course 

offerings to meet not only the state goals for education, but those set by a 

local school district in order to provide a comprehensive educational program 

for all students in keeping with the mandate of Chapter 212. The NJEA would not 

want to see students deprived of courses, programs, and services that currently 

mark a comprehensive program nor denied the addition of such courses, programs, 

and services to improve curriculum offerings within a high school. State-mandated 

curricular requirements should be prescribed and so stated as "minimum requirements." 

• A closely articulated K-12 grade curriculum should be given continuing 

attention to proficiencies cited. Greater respect for the individual student, 

however, should be expressed in terms of student progress toward proficiency 

levels and curricular offerings. As I indicated to you earlier in this testimony, 

children should be assessed only on that curriculum which has been provided for 

them. To do otherwise is totally unfair. 

• In order to guarantee maximum student participation in education offerings, 

it should be necessary for schools to carefully review (1) how student absenteeism 

can be reduced and (2) how the amount of parental interaction and responsibility 

in such areas of concern can be increased . 

• Local boards of education shall provide the services of child study team 

personnel at the ratio of one team for every 1,500 pupils to insure back-up 

services for students in need as well as providing the services of a speech 

therapist and making available, if necessary, medical examinations. 

Mr. Chairman, thank you for the opportunity to discuss with you S-1154 
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as amended. NJEA recognizes that there is a strong desire on the part of the 

Administration and legislators to require high school diploma requirements. 

NJEA has long supported high school diploma standards. Our concern is that we 

enact the right bill for children. 
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2/28/79 

POSITION ON S-1154 

Schoolwatch supports the concept of statewide high 

school graduation standards, primarily because they will 

aid disadvantaged and non-achieving students more than 

the current system does, and because they will force 

change in that system. 

Graduation standards are a viable alternative to 

the failure of the current system to educate many students, 

particularly poor and minority students. Although it 

may appear that such students are worse off if they are 

deni.ecl a diploma, their plight will prompt remedial action 

becaus0: 

1. Their failures will be made public, by necessity, 

rather than covered up; 

2. Their response and their parents' response to this 

failure will bv angry and demanding. They will no longer 

he able to placidly accept the status quo as they did when 

they knew they would graduate anyway; 

3. Their demand for accountability and remediation 

will force the schools to help them, to treat them individually 

and to provide special services, which the schools are not now 

doing; and 
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2. 

4. ThP provision of services -- on demand, rather than 

voluntarily -- will soon result in fewer students failing the test 

and not meeting graduation standards. 

Schoo1watch cannot support S-1154 as it is written because it 

does not require enough in its intention to ameliorate the failure 

problem. There is no provision, for example, for Tesources to be 

used in planning and operating remf'dial programs for high school 

students with grade school competencies. It does not allow time for 

a trial period in which to implement and study such remedial programs. 

It does not stipulate what ~ of statewide assessment test is to be 

administered: will it be a basic skills test, a minimum competency 

test for a certain grade level, or a test which measures high school 

level competencies in reading, writing and math? 

There is also no guarantee that the imposition of standards 

and a test criterion will result in an improved school program for 

high school students. Minimum basic skills testing is already in 

place for elementary and secondary school students, and there is no 

indication that the discouraging results of those tests have prompted 

serious or improved remediation efforts. 

Schoolwatch docs support the provisions of S-1154 which call 

for statcwjde standards, a statewide test, and rem1~dial programs for 

students who fail the test in the 9th, 10th, and 11th grades. We 

also support the procedure whereby students are first tested in the 

ninth grade and given three subsequent opportunities to take the test. 
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3. 

Schoolwatch recorrunends the following revisions in S-1154: 

l. A provision for resources to be allocatE'd to school 

districLs for remedial programs if more than a certain percentage 

of students fail the test; 

2. A provision which requires the State Department of Education 

to give technical assistance to any district which requests it for the 

development of remedial progrw1s (The bill now only requires the 

state's assistance in development of graduation standards.); and 

3. A provision for a two-year study period, starting in 

September, 1981, during which all aspects of the bill will be 

implemented on a trial basis. This would postpone the first year in 

which students can be denied a diploma to 1986-87, and would affect 

students who are now in the fifth grade or lower. At the same time, 

students now in junior and senior high schools will benefit from the 

programs without suffering the imposed and undeserved consequences. 
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by Arthur C. Thomas, President 

The Department of Education could not implement this bill, if enacted. 
Other important laws and standards have been mishandled by the 

Department,e.g., the minimum basic skills assessment and remediation pro­
gram; citizen participation in the thorough and efficient process; and, 
monitoring and evaluation of local districts. 

I,.4is bill fails to judge accurately the shambles of present student pro­
ficiencies and failure of the Department to provide the leadership for 
educational quality in teaching and learning. 

Statistically, the public education system is presently failing 
our children. This bill makes "Pxit requirements" of the students but 
fails to deal with other participants in the system who share the larger 
responsibility for the system's failures. 

The bill calls for compensatory studies for those who might be 
expected to fail the "exit" test; however, the "system" of education it­
self is in need of remediation. 

Tl1e burden of this bill would fall most heavily on the students and child­
ren of our urban districts at a time when the leadership of the Departrnen~ 
of Education maintains in effect that urban children cannot achieve and per­
form as well as children from suburban districts. 

The Department of Education has not provided the leadE~rship so that many 
suburban districts have no adequate programs for remediation. 

This bill provides no standards or resourcing for just e~actment of its 
intentions. Without adequate leadership, the Department of Education 
would implement this bill to the detriment of our cl1ildren. 
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